
           

FINAL AGENDA
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
TUESDAY
SEPTEMBER 17, 2013

  COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

4:00 P.M. AND 6:00 P.M.
 

4:00 P.M. MEETING
 

Individual Items on the 4:00 p.m. meeting agenda may be postponed to the 6:00 p.m.
meeting.

             

1. CALL TO ORDER
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

 

2. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means .

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER

COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MISSION STATEMENT

MISSION STATEMENT
 

The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life of its citizens.
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS
 

A.   Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Regular Meeting of September 3,
2013; the Joint Work Session with Coconino County Board of Supervisors of September 9,
2013; and the Special Meeting (Executive Session) of September 10, 2013.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Amend/approve the minutes of the City Council Regular Meeting of September 3, 2013;

the Joint Work Session with Coconino County Board of Supervisors of September 9,
2013; and the Special Meeting (Executive Session) of September 10, 2013.

 

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 



5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about an item that is not on the
agenda (or is listed under Possible Future Agenda Items). Comments relating to items that
are on the agenda will be taken at the time that the item is discussed. If you wish to address
the Council at tonight's meeting, please complete a comment card and submit it to the
recording clerk as soon as possible. Your name will be called when it is your turn to speak.
You may address the Council up to three times throughout the meeting, including comments
made during Public Participation. Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to
allow everyone an opportunity to speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons
present at the meeting and wishing to speak may appoint a representative who may have no
more than fifteen minutes to speak. 

 

6. PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS

None 
 

7. APPOINTMENTS

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that the City Council may vote to go into executive session, which
will not be open to the public, for the purpose of discussing or considering employment,
assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or
resignation of a public officer, appointee, or employee of any public body...., pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1).

None
 

8. LIQUOR LICENSE PUBLIC HEARINGS

None
 

9. CONSENT ITEMS

All matters under Consent Agenda are considered by the City Council to be routine and will
be enacted by one motion approving the recommendations listed on the agenda. Unless
otherwise indicated , expenditures approved by Council are budgeted items.

 

A.   Emergency Purchase of a 700 HP Variable Frequency Drive(VFD) Motor Control for
the Shop Well

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve the purchase from Applied Ingenuity, LLC in the amount of $ 94,797.00.
 

10. ROUTINE ITEMS
 

A.   Consideration of Amendment No. Two regarding the Intergovernmental Agreement
(IGA)/Joint Project Agreement (JPA):  #11-096I between the City of Flagstaff (City) and
the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) for the FY 2013 Highway Safety
Improvement Program (HSIP),  Transverse Pavement Marking Improvement Program.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve Amendment No.Two regarding the IGA/JPA between the City of Flagstaff and

Arizona Department of Transportation
 

B.   Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No.  2013-06:  An Ordinance

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting September 17, 2013                           2 



B.   Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No.  2013-06:  An Ordinance
amending Flagstaff City Code Title 2, Boards and Commissions, Chapter 2-12,
Transportation Commission, for the purpose of changing the membership of the
Transportation Commission, and removing the Commission's appellate authority. 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Read Ordinance No. 2013-06 by title only for the final time

2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2013-06 by title only (if approved above)
3) Adopt Ordinance No. 2013-06 on September 17, 2013.

 

C.   Consideration and Approval of Miscellaneous Receivable Account Write-offs:
Delinquent and uncollectable accounts for Fiscal Year 2013.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve the write-off of delinquent and uncollectable miscellaneous receivable accounts

in the amount of $3,831.73.
 

D.   Consideration and Approval of Transaction Privilege (Sales) Tax Account Write-offs:
Delinquent and uncollectable accounts for Fiscal Year 2013.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve the write-off of delinquent and uncollectable transaction privilege (sales) tax

accounts in the amount of $100,866.05.
 

E.   Consideration and Approval of Utility Account Write-offs: Delinquent and uncollectable
accounts for Fiscal Year 2013.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve the write-off of delinquent and uncollectable utility accounts in the amount of

$121,300.64.
 

F.   Consideration and Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement with Northern Arizona
Council of Governments (NACOG) to continue operation of their Head Start programs at five
city-owned facilities.  

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve the intergovernmental agreement to allow NACOG to continue operating Head

Start programs at the five locations where they currently are operating. 

 

G.   City Manager Excellence Awards.
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Discussion only
 

RECESS 

6:00 P.M. MEETING

RECONVENE
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting September 17, 2013                           3 



 

11. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER

COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 

 

12. CARRY OVER ITEMS FROM THE 4:00 P.M. AGENDA
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

None
 

14. REGULAR AGENDA
 

A.   Consideration of Ordinance No. 2013-20: An Ordinance adopting the prohibition of
intentionally, knowingly or recklessly feeding wildlife.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Move to read Ordinance 2013-20 for the final time by title only

2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2013-20 by title only (if approved above)
3) Adopt Ordinance No. 2013-20

 

B.   Consideration and Approval of Preliminary Plat: True Life Communities PS AZ for The
Estates at Pine Canyon, Unit 5 subdivision, a forty-seven lot, single-family, detached
residential subdivision. The site is 29.946 acres in size and is located at 3851 South
Clubhouse Circle in the Pine Canyon Development.  The site is zoned R1, Single-Family
Residential Zone. 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approving the Preliminary Plat.
 

C.   Consideration and Approval of a Preliminary Plat: for Miramonte Homes, Tract B of
Presidio in the Pines, a subdivision of 14 single-family, residential townhomes on
approximately 1.65 acres located at 2700 S Presidio Drive South, within the Highway
Commercial (HC) Zone.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve

the Preliminary Plat subject to the conditions listed in the attached Conditional Use
Permit (PCUP13-0004).

 

D.   Consideration and Possible Adoption of Resolution No. 2013-23: A resolution of the
City Council of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, ordering and calling the 2014 Primary/General
Elections; and providing for and giving notice of said election(s).

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Should the City Council wish to move forward with calling the 2014 Spring Elections:

1) Read Resolution No. 2013-23 by title only
2) City Clerk reads Resolution No. 2013-23 (if approved above)
3) Adopt Resolution No. 2013-23

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting September 17, 2013                           4 



15. DISCUSSION ITEMS
 

A.   Regional Plan Discussion #3 – Ch. VII. Energy

THIS ITEM WILL NOT BE DISCUSSED PRIOR TO 7:00 P.M.
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Staff will present a brief background of data, public comment input, and policies

for Chapter VII. Energy of the Flagstaff Regional Plan.  Council may wish to open the
discussion for public comment at this time, followed by discussion on any
concerns regarding this chapter or policies to put on the 'Policy Parking Lot' list for
further Council discussion, debate and decision in November and December.

 

B.   Discussion of the City's Materials Testing Program.
  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Consider information received from private sector service providers and provide

direction to staff regarding the Materials Testing Program.
 

16. POSSIBLE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Verbal comments from the public on any item under this section must be given during Public
Participation (#5) near the beginning of the meeting. Written comments may be submitted to
the City Clerk. After discussion and upon agreement of three members of the Council, an
item will be moved to a regularly-scheduled Council meeting.

None
 

17. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
 

18. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS FROM COUNCIL AND STAFF, REQUESTS
FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

 

19. ADJOURNMENT
 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF NOTICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Flagstaff City Hall
on ______________________ , at _________ a.m./p.m. in accordance with the statement filed by the City Council with the
City Clerk.

Dated this _____ day of _________________, 2013.

____________________________________
Elizabeth A. Burke, MMC, City Clerk                                 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting September 17, 2013                           5 



  4. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Elizabeth A. Burke, City Clerk

Date: 09/13/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE
Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Regular Meeting of September 3, 2013; the Joint
Work Session with Coconino County Board of Supervisors of September 9, 2013; and the Special
Meeting (Executive Session) of September 10, 2013.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Amend/approve the minutes of the City Council Regular Meeting of September 3, 2013; the Joint
Work Session with Coconino County Board of Supervisors of September 9, 2013; and the Special
Meeting (Executive Session) of September 10, 2013.

INFORMATION
Attached are copies of the minutes of the City Council Regular Meeting of September 3, 201; the Joint
Work Session with Coconino County Board of Supervisors of September 9, 2013; and the Special
Meeting (Executive Session) of September 10, 2013.

Attachments:  CCRM09032013.Minutes
CCJWS09092013.Minutes
CCSM09102013.Minutes



MINUTES 
 

                  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
            TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 

            COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
            211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE 

4:00 P.M. AND 6:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
1.       CALL TO ORDER 
  
 Mayor Nabours called the meeting to order at 4:08 p.m. 
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
  

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City 
Council and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote 
to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and 
discussion with the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following 
agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3). 

 
2.     ROLL CALL 
 

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other 
technological means. 

 
Present: 
 
MAYOR NABOURS 
VICE MAYOR EVANS 
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ 
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER (telephonically) 
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS 
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 

Absent: 
 
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Others present: City Manager Kevin Burke; City Attorney Michelle D’Andrea. 
 
3.       PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MISSION STATEMENT 
 
 The City Council and audience recited the Pledge of Allegiance and Mayor Nabours 

read the City’s Mission Statement. 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
  

 The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life of its 
citizens. 

 
 
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 2 
 
 
4.       APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 
A.     Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Special Meeting 

(Executive Session) of August 26, 2013; and the Regular Meeting of August 26, 
2013. 

 
 Councilmember Woodson moved to approve the minutes of the City 

Council Special Meeting (Executive Session) of August 26, 2013; and the 
Regular Meeting of August 26, 2013; seconded; passed unanimously. 

 
5.       PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
 Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about an item that is not 

on the agenda (or is listed under Possible Future Agenda Items). Comments relating to 
items that are on the agenda will be taken at the time that the item is discussed. If you 
wish to address the Council at tonight's meeting, please complete a comment card and 
submit it to the recording clerk as soon as possible. Your name will be called when it is 
your turn to speak. You may address the Council up to three times throughout the 
meeting, including comments made during Public Participation. Please limit your 
remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone an opportunity to speak. At the 
discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting and wishing to speak 
may appoint a representative who may have no more than fifteen minutes to speak.  

 
 Gary Robbins, a local attorney representing the 12 Step Meetings at the Amtrak Station, 

stated that he had dropped off a letter earlier in the day and he thanked Mr. Burke and 
Ms. Button for meeting with him.  

 
 Mayor Nabours stated that the Council was aware of the situation and were trying to 

accommodate it as much as possible. 
   
 Annette Zinky, NACET, introduced Jerome Harris, a student from France, working with 

NACET to create his own company. Mr. Harris gave a brief recap of what he has been 
working on. 

  
 Dr. Elizabeth Caspian, speaking on behalf of several physicians, addressed the issue of 

hunting within the City limits and its interaction with pedestrians on the City’s many trails. 
She said that she has addressed it with Game and Fish and asked that the City address 
the issue as well. 

 
6.       PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
 None 
 
7.       APPOINTMENTS 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City 
Council and to the general public that the City Council may vote to go into executive 
session, which will not be open to the public, for the purpose of discussing or 
considering employment, assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 3 
 

salaries, disciplining or resignation of a public officer, appointee, or employee of any 
public body...., pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1). 

 
None 

 
8.       LIQUOR LICENSE PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 None  
 
9.       CONSENT ITEMS 

 
All matters under Consent Agenda are considered by the City Council to be routine and 
will be enacted by one motion approving the recommendations listed on the agenda. 
Unless otherwise indicated, expenditures approved by Council are budgeted items. 
 
With regard to Item 9-B, Mayor Nabours asked why the City would be spending so much 
with the Vacaville Reporter. CVB Director Heidi Hansen explained that this was done 
through the RFP process and this organization was selected to provide their services for 
internet advertising. She said that they are able to buy network digital advertising at a 
lesser rate than the City and can reach far greater areas. 
 
Councilmember Oravits asked why item 9-A was considered an emergency. Ms. Hansen 
explained that it was simply the title of the item on the agenda. It was specifically a sole 
source purchase; the emergency did not apply. 
 
Councilmember Woodson moved to approve the Consent Agenda Items; 
seconded; passed unanimously. 
 
A.         Consideration and Approval of Emergency/Sole Source Purchase: Purchase 

of advertisements from Republic Media (Arizona Republic, AZCentral.com, 
Sedona Publishing, etc.)  

 
 MOTION: Approve the purchase from Republic Media in an amount not to 

exceed $85,000.  
 
B.        Consideration and Approval of Contract:  CVB Online Display Advertising and 

Pay Per Click (PPC) Campaign Management: RFP No. 2013-46  
 
 MOTION: Accept the proposal and approve the contract from The Reporter 

under Request for Proposal (RFP) No. 2013-46 in an amount not to exceed 
$135,000 for fiscal year 2014.  

 
10.      ROUTINE ITEMS  
 

A.     Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No.  2013-06:  An Ordinance 
amending Flagstaff City Code Title 2, Boards and Commissions, Chapter 2-12, 
Transportation Commission, for the purpose of changing the membership of the 
Transportation Commission, and removing the Commission's appellate authority.  
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 4 
 

Mayor Nabours said that right now the Transportation Commission had the ability 
to overrule the engineering department and Council did not think that was the 
correct way to do things. 
 
Traffic Engineer Jeff Bauman then reviewed the proposed changes in the 
ordinance: 
 
1) It proposes a change from six citizen members and one representative from 

FUSD, to five citizen members and the FUSD and NAIPTA members would 
become actual voting members with terms.  

2) Meetings would be switched from monthly to quarterly. 
3) Removing the Commission’s ability to recommend something such as a 

signal, in opposition of the Traffic Engineer. 
4) A change from appeals of the Traffic Engineer’s decision going to the 

Commission, to going to the City Engineer. 
 
Mr. Bauman was asked why he thought there was such a lack of agenda items 
as they often hear about various issues throughout the community. Mr. Bauman 
said that he fields calls and complaints every day and they usually work through 
them. The Traffic Commission deals with larger policy issues. 
 
Mr. Bauman also confirms that these changes were reviewed by the Traffic 
Commission members and they support its passage. 
 
Staff was asked if FUSD and NAIPTA were fine with the understanding that they 
would be limited to two terms and staff replied they were both fine with that 
requirement, and also that they needed to be Flagstaff residents which they both 
are. 
 
Councilmember Woodson moved to read Ordinance No. 2013-06 by title 
only for the first time on September 3, 2013; seconded; passed 
unanimously. 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE TITLE 2, BOARDS 
AND COMMISSIONS, CHAPTER 2-12, TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF CHANGING THE MEMBERSHIP OF THE 
FLAGSTAFF TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, AND REMOVING THE 
COMMISSION’S APPELLATE AUTHORITY  

 
RECESS  
 
The Flagstaff City Council Meeting of September 3, 2013, recessed at 4:34 p.m. 
 

 
6:00 P.M. MEETING 

 
RECONVENE 
 
Mayor Nabours reconvened the September 3, 2013, meeting of the Flagstaff City Council at 
6:03 p.m. 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 5 
 
      

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
  
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City 
Council and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote 
to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and 
discussion with the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following 
agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3). 

 
11.     ROLL CALL 
 

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other 
technological means. 

 
Present: 
 
MAYOR NABOURS 
VICE MAYOR EVANS 
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ 
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER (telephonically) 
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS 
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON (telephonically) 
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 

Absent: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Others present: City Manager Kevin Burke; City Attorney Michelle D’Andrea. 
 
12.     CARRY OVER ITEMS FROM THE 4:00 P.M. AGENDA 
 
 None 
 
 Mayor Nabours stated that he would like to move up this item on the agenda at this time. 
 
17.     PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
 The following individuals spoke about the need for Council to support net metering and 

solar power, and consider adopting a resolution directed to the Arizona Corporation 
Commission to oppose the efforts of Arizona Public Service to reduce the payback to 
APS solar customers: 

 
 Martos Hoffman 
 Daniel Paduchowski 
 Derek Turner 
 Hadassah Ziegler 
 Erin Evans 
 Michael Griffis 
 
 Spencer Larson, Troop 288, asked how moving Harkins and the DES benefit the citizens 

of Flagstaff. Mayor Nabours asked him to send him an e-mail and he would be happy to 
answer that question. 

 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 6 
 
 John Hales, Merit Badge Counselor, asked what the Council’s priorities were with 

revenues going up in the City. Mayor Nabours stated that the Council would be holding a 
half-day special meeting on September 19, 2013, and one of the items was setting goals 
for the coming year. 

 
13.     PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
 None  
 
14.     REGULAR AGENDA 
 
 None  
 
15.      DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

A. Flagstaff Regional Plan Discussion #1 - Process and Introduction  
 
Mayor Nabours reviewed the process being followed for the Regional Plan 
discussions, noting that they were doing it in ten evenings. At each meeting they 
will address a particular section of the Regional Plan and will take public 
comment on that portion of the Plan. They would like to try and avoid getting too 
fragmented. He said that they were not making any decisions tonight or during 
the next several meetings. They will get comments from the public and Council 
and start making a list of issues, and they will then come back and address those 
issues. 
 
City Manager Kevin Burke said that it was a privilege to be introducing the Public 
Hearing Draft of the Regional Plan. They were at a point tonight where the 
Citizens Advisory Committee, with great assistance from staff, has brought 
forward a draft that is ready for public review and input. He then began the review 
of the PowerPoint presentation which addressed: 
 
 OVERVIEW  
 
He said that they were dividing it into an administrative perspective which he 
would cover and a legal perspective which would be covered by City Attorney 
Michelle D’Andrea. 
 
 PROCESS FOR COUNCIL REVIEW 
 
He said that the main point he wanted to make was that the goals and policies 
were not exclusive at that level; it is a vision. Policy decisions have no right or 
wrong answers. When the time comes to make a decision, the Council may be 
looking at the Regional Plan by itself, or with other considerations. There are a 
few occasions, such as a rezone or major plan amendment, when they have to 
look at the Regional Plan, but there are other times when they look to it as a 
value. 
 
Ms. D’Andrea said that only zoning decisions are subject to legal challenge. By 
ordinance the Council has to consider whether a rezone is consistent with the 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 7 
 

Regional Plan. When they are making decisions they will look at the Goals and 
Policies in the Regional Plan. She said that there are likely to be conflicts with  
the language, but it will be up to Council to decide in each setting. As long as they 
have considered the Regional Plan they are okay. 
 
She said that the court would almost never overturn a zone change as they will 
give great deference and will not scrutinize. She said that the purpose of the 
Regional Plan is to help them make decisions based on the vision made by the 
citizens of Flagstaff. 
 
Mr. Burke continued, stating that they need to answer the question, “Can you live 
it?” versus, “Is it perfect?” He said that they were asking for Council to lend this 
document their expertise, political sense, and help identify policies that may have 
unintended consequences.  
 
 PROCESS FOR COUNCIL REVIEW 
 
Ms. Sharp then reviewed the process they would follow for Council review and 
she reviewed the calendar. 
 
 AT EACH OF THE TUESDAY COUNCIL REVIEW SESSIONS 
 
 COUNCIL WILL DISCUSS “PARKING LOT”   
 
Ms. Sharp said that she would be reviewing the Process and Chapters One 
through Three which are the Introduction; there would be no goals or policies 
address tonight. 
 
Councilmember Brewster thanked everyone that had worked on this. She asked 
why Economic Development was last in the Plan as she thought it drove 
everything else. Ms. Sharp said that a lot of the chapters, particularly Land Use 
and Transportation, that feed into the Economic Development Chapter, which is 
why it was last. 
 
 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 THIS IS OUR PLAN 
 
 WHY HAVE A REGIONAL PLAN? 
 
Councilmember Oravits asked that staff clarify the issue of the City and the 
County each having their own document and each body deciding the final 
outcome. Ms. Sharp said that was correct. Both elected bodies would be 
reviewing the document and suggesting changes, and that is why staff was 
suggesting the Joint Meetings. 
 
Ms. Sharp explained that years ago the City Council and Board of Supervisors 
decided that a Regional Plan was a smart way to move forward so they shared 
resources and opened up public hearings together, but before they are finalized, 
the Council would give the Board of Supervisors their suggestions and the Board 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 8 
 

of Supervisors would give the Council their suggestions. She said that they have 
been trying to carefully coordinate an exchange of information. Ms. D’Andrea said 
that this process was fine, but voting would need to be done separately. 
 
Councilmember Oravits asked if they would have two different parking lots. 
Ms. D’Andrea said that there was no authority for him to give direction to the 
County and the same with the County giving direction to the City. She said that 
the direction would be recorded separately and direction given to the appropriate 
entity. 
  
 WHERE WE ARE TODAY 
 DEMOGRAPHICS 
 GROWTH CONSTRAINTS 
 FUTURE POPULATION PROJECTIONS 
 CONSTRAINTS: LAND, WATER, GROWTH SCENARIOS 
 PROCESS TO DEVELOP THIS PLAN 
 GOAL IS TO ENSURE TRANSPARENCY 
 HOW WILL THE REGIONAL PLAN BE USED? 
 IMPLEMENTATION 
 ANNUAL PLAN REVIEW AND MONITORING 
 PARTIAL FUTURE SCHEDULE 
 
Mayor Nabours said that it would be helpful if Ms. Sharp and Mr. Eastman could 
give the Council two or three examples of where a project would come in, where 
they would look to the Regional Plan to determine if it is consistent, etc. 
Ms. Sharp said that she would work with Mr. Eastman and provide those at the 
September 10, 2013, meeting. 
 
Councilmember Barotz noted that when staff summaries come through to the 
Council, by the time it gets to them it has already gone through this process with 
the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
Mayor Nabours said that he would also like them to review the purpose and 
binding nature of the maps. 
 
Mr. Burke said that they were hoping to spend about an hour for each review, so 
everyone needs to be prepared. He asked that they let staff know if they did not 
think the process was working. 
 
Councilmember Oravits said that he appreciated that there were time constraints, 
but it was a four-year process and there are a lot of people that felt left out of the 
process. They need to be prepared for allowing for more time. 
 
Councilmember Oravits then began a review of suggested changes he would 
propose, as indicated in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
Councilmember Barotz said that she was confused; she asked if they were going 
to rewrite the Plan from the dais. It was noted that it would take four members of 
the Council to incorporate the suggested changes. 
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 9 
 

Councilmember Overton apologized for not being present in person. He said that 
it reminded him of the rewrite of the Zoning Code. He had numerous issues and 
constituent concerns early on. He said that they used the worksheet process that 
allowed them to list the proposed changes and get them resolved. 
 
Vice Mayor Evans asked if staff was suggesting that the Council would be going 
over all of the suggested changes at the November 19, 2013, meeting. Ms. Sharp 
said that the Public Review Draft was published in March. At that time they began 
the preparation of a spreadsheet with over 700 suggested comments. She 
highlighted those that were policy and those that needed CAC review, and they 
whittled the list down from 734 comments to 300. 
 
Vice Mayor Evans said that she truly appreciated those that have been involved 
in the process for the past four years. She has also tried to be respectful of the 
four-year process, but there needs to be a way to hear their concerns and if 
they’re valid, consider them. 
 
Councilmember Oravits said that he, too, respects those that were on the CAC, 
but he has heard from a lot of people that felt left out of the process. He then 
continued review of his recommended changes. 
 
Eva Putzova, Flagstaff resident and member of the CAC, said she had not 
planned to address the Council this evening but she was very concerned about 
the process. She said that she did feel disrespected, and if they were going to 
rewrite the entire Plan she questioned why they even had a CAC. She said that 
they had disagreements, debates, etc.; the document went through a democratic 
process and the public was always invited to them. She reminded them that it 
was a vision of twenty plus residents and constituents. 
 
Councilmember Oravits said that he did appreciate their service and he was not 
trying to exclude that, but he was trying to include those that felt left out. 
 
Mayor Nabours, reading under Human Environment, “providing quality housing,” 
asked Ms. Putzova their intention of that wording. Ms. Putzova said that it was a 
collective vision of what should be provided, through all kinds of means—
government, private, partnerships, etc. 
 
Ms. Sharp said that staff would begin preparing a spreadsheet, similar to what 
they used for possible changes to Zoning Code, and as Councilmembers had 
comments they could send them to her. It was noted that a possible retreat day in 
December has been considered as well, if it is needed to review the proposals. 
 
A break was held from 7:45 p.m. to 7:55 p.m. 
 

B. Discussion of Election Issues  
 

Ms. D’Andrea said that she had previously distributed a confidential memo 
regarding issues related to the upcoming elections. She then began a PowerPoint 
presentation and reviewed the status of the recent ruling in Superior Court, noting 
that the State had a few weeks in which to file an appeal. 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 10 
 

 
 CURRENT LITIGATION 
 
Ms. Burke then continued the presentation which addressed: 
 
 POTENTIAL 2014 FLAGSTAFF ELECTIONS 
 COSTS FOR TYPES OF ELECTIONS 
 QUESTIONS/ISSUES 
 
Council discussed the various options and timetables involved, and agreed to 
place an item on the September 17, 2013, Council meeting to possibly call the 
election for the Spring of 2014. 

 
C.        Discussion of Transportation Tax Proposal  

 
Executive Assistant to City Manager Stephanie Smith gave a PowerPoint 
presentation, Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof, on a 
transportation tax proposal which addressed the following: 
 
OVERVIEW 
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF STREET MAINTENANCE 
BACKGROUND 
INTERAGENCY CONSIDERATIONS 
CONDITIONS 
BONDS AND REVENUE 
PROPOSAL 
 
PROPOSAL – OPTION #1 
 Question #1 
 Question #2A 
 Question #2B 
 Question #3 
 
PROPOSAL – OPTION #2 
 Question #1A 
 Question #1B 
 Question #2  
 Question #3 
 Question #4 
 
COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
 
Mayor Nabours asked if they did the increase in sales tax of .279% for 25 years if 
that would generate enough to pay $50 million in bonds and provide them with 
some maintenance every year. Mr. Burke said that they were trying to avoid 
having to do it all over again. They would like to get up to speed and then do 
annual maintenance to keep it up to standards. 
 
Staff was asked where utilities fell into the scenario and whether they were part 
of overall plan. Ms. Smith said that when they were reviewing the proposal and 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 11 
 

during the QIA they determined that some of the roads were in such poor 
condition they need to be rebuilt. 
 
Mr. Burke said that they would not be addressed in this proposal. The rate model 
was set at the end of five years to do two miles of water line and one mile of 
sewer line a year. They could accelerate that, but in the past it has been more of 
a “pay as you go.” 
 
Vice Mayor Evans said that she was concerned with coupling the proposed tax 
with the Rio de Flag, as she is not sure the general public understands the 
impact of the Rio de Flag on the entire community. Councilmember Oravits 
agreed.  
 
Councilmember Woodson said that he thought the Rio could be a separate ballot 
question, but on the same ballot. Further discussion was held on the status of the 
Rio de Flag and Council agreed that it should not move forward at this time. 
 
Mr. Burke asked if there was any interest in having a citizens advisory committee 
established that would provide input to the City Manager, or to hear from the 
Transportation Commission. Council agreed to move in the direction of obtaining 
further input and also looking further into associated underground infrastructure 
needs. 
 
Councilmember Barotz said that she has been spending time with people in the 
biking community and they have shared some concerns. She asked if any of this 
funding would remedy some of the issues with intersections and associated bike 
lanes. Ms. Smith said that the proposals as they stand do include ancillary and 
bike lanes, but the intersections have not been addressed at this time. 
 
Councilmember Woodson said that they were asking citizens to approve 
additional funding. He asked if there was a trade off and he would like to receive 
a report from staff on whether this was supplanting other projects. He said that 
they need to explain that it is not the intent, but rather to augment. 
 
Mr. Burke said that is a choice that Council will need to decide, particularly 
relating to ongoing maintenance. There are some proposals that add money. 
Councilmember Oravits said that they also need to be looking at trade-offs of 
other revenue.      

 
16.      POSSIBLE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Verbal comments from the public on any item under this section must be given during 
Public Participation (#5) near the beginning of the meeting. Written comments may be 
submitted to the City Clerk. After discussion and upon agreement of three members of 
the Council, an item will be moved to a regularly-scheduled Council meeting. 
 
A.      Request by Mayor Nabours to review the ordinance prohibiting overnight RV 

parking on private property  
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 12 
 

 Brief discussion was held on this item. Mayor Nabours and Councilmembers 
Oravits and Brewster requested to move it to a future agenda. 

 
B.       Request by Mayor Nabours to review No Smoking Ordinance re smoking in front 

of a door/window of someone else's apartment door/window  
 
 Mayor Nabours said that there was a gap in the statute and/or ordinance 

regarding someone smoking outside the window of someone else’s apartment. 
After brief discussion there was not enough interest to move this forward. 

 
C.       Request by Mayor Nabours to consider possible change to transaction privilege 

ordinance to exempt land value from sales tax on new home construction  
 
 After a brief discussion, there was not enough interest to move it forward. 
 
D.       Request by Mayor Nabours to look at adopting a Community Banking Program  

 
 Mayor Nabours said that he was interested in obtaining more information on 

something like the City of Tucson has where the City deposits their money with a 
local bank and the interest earned is used to make loans to local businesses.  

 
 Mayor Nabours and Councilmembers Oravits and Brewster agreed to move this 

forward to a future agenda. 
 
 Vice Mayor Evans asked that while staff looks into this further that they also look 

into the programs of NACET, ECONA, etc. and how those programs would tie 
into something like this. 

 
18.     INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS FROM COUNCIL AND STAFF, 

REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 September 19, 2013, Council Retreat Agenda  
 
 Brief discussion was held on what was to be discussed at the September 19, 2013, 

Retreat. Council agreed that they prefer to have Water discussions in the evening so 
that would continue with the Special Meeting on September 30, and the Retreat would 
focus on the departments providing a brief recap of past year accomplishments and 
Council goals. 

 
 Mayor Nabours said that there may be a department or two that has a goal that would be 

an appropriate goal for the Council to address as well, and he would like to hear about 
those. 

 
 Councilmember Oravits said that while he was attending the League Conference down 

in Tucson he noticed that they had the left green turn arrows happening after the yellow 
and asked if the City has ever looked into using that.  

 
 Councilmember Oravits asked if the City has booths at the State Fair or anywhere else 

within the state. He would like a quick e-mail with that answer. 
 



Flagstaff City Council 
Meeting of September 3, 2013  Page 13 
 
 Councilmember Barotz reported that last Friday she and Mayor Nabours toured the 

Science Center in Phoenix, and she also extended a thank you to the City Manager for 
agreeing to explore issues related to the 12 Step Program at the Visitor’s Center. 

 
 Councilmember Barotz asked if they could hold a work session in the future with Game 

and Fish, and any other related parties, to discuss navigating challenges of hunting and 
trail users. Vice Mayor Evans said that she would also be interested in that conversation. 

 
 Councilmember Woodson said that they have had a lot of rain, yet they have not had a 

lot of complaints. He asked the City Manager to pass on to staff that they have been 
doing a good job of dealing with the rain. 

 
 Mayor Nabours reported that there was a strong presence of City staff at the recent 

League Conference, with Brad Hill, Michelle D’Andrea, Councilmember Overton and 
himself, as well as Russ Yelton and Richard Travis, involved in presentations. 

 
19.     ADJOURNMENT 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held September 3, 2013, adjourned at 
9:22 p.m. 

 
 
             
      _________________________________________ 
      MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________  
CITY CLERK 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
ARIZONA ) 
       ) ss. 
Coconino  ) 
 
I, ELIZABETH A. BURKE, do hereby certify that I am the City Clerk of the City of Flagstaff, 
County of Coconino, State of Arizona, and that the above Minutes are a true and correct 
summary of the meeting of the Council of the City of Flagstaff held September 3, 2013. I further 
certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 
Dated this 17th day of September, 2013. 
 
      ________________________________________  
      CITY CLERK 



MINUTES 
 

JOINT CITY/COUNTY WORK SESSION 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE 

4:00 P.M. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Mayor Nabours called the Flagstaff Joint Work Session of September 9, 2013, to order 
at 4:03 p.m. 
 

Notice of Option to Recess Into Executive Session 
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City 
Council and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote 
to go into executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and 
discussion with the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following 
agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3). 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: ABSENT: 
 
Flagstaff City Council 
 
MAYOR NABOURS 
VICE MAYOR EVANS   
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ  
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER 
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS 
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON 
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 
 
Coconino County Board of Supervisors 
 
SUPERVISOR BABBOTT CHAIRMWOMAN ARCHULETA  
SUPERVISOR BABBOTT  SUPERVISOR METZGER  
SUPERVISOR FOWLER (Arrived at 4:16 p.m.) 
SUPERVISOR RYAN 
 
Others present: City Manager Kevin Burke; County Manager Cynthia Seelhammer; City 
Attorney Michelle D’Andrea; County Senior Civil Attorney Bill Ring. 

4.       Public Participation: 
 

Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about items that are not 
on the agenda. Public Participation appears on the agenda twice, at the beginning and 



Flagstaff City Council/County Board of Supervisors 
Joint Work Session of September 9, 2013  Page 2 
 

at the end of the work session. You may speak at one or the other, but not both. Anyone 
wishing to comment on an item that is on the agenda is asked to fill out a speaker card 
and submit it to the recording clerk. When the item comes up on the agenda, your name 
will be called. You may address the Council up to three times throughout the meeting, 
including comments made during Public Participation. Please limit your remarks to three 
minutes per item to allow everyone an opportunity to speak. 

  
 Joe Farnsworth, Flagstaff, spoke against the proposed Wildlife Ordinance, indicating that 

a Referendum Petition would be circulated if it was adopted. 
 
 Joe Ray, Flagstaff, spoke in support of the AA Meetings held at the Visitor’s Center. 
  
5.         Presentation on the Cherenkov Telescope Array  
 
 Jeff Hall with Lowell Observatory gave a PowerPoint presentation, Exhibit A attached 

hereto and made a part hereof, which addressed the following: 
 
 CHERENKOV  
 CANDIDATE SITES 
 EXAMPLE TELESCOPE ARRAY: VERITAS 
 A VERITAS TELESCOPE 
 OBSERVING CHERENKOV RADIATION 
 CTA – NORTH TELESCOPES 
 20-30 TELESCOPES 
 CTA IN ARIZONA 
 ASTRONOMY IN ARIZONA 
 ASTRONOMY IN FLAGSTAFF 
  
 Supervisor Fowler arrived at this time. 
 
 ASTRONOMY AT LOWELL OBSERVATORY 
 PROPOSED SITES IN ARIZONA 

YAVAPAI RANCH 
SITE SELECTION TIMELINE 
PRIORITY SITE:  METEOR CRATER 
 
Supervisor Ryan said that he appreciated Mr. Hall’s work on this, indicating that there 
was good collaboration in the community. 
 
Mayor Nabours asked if there was anything as a City or County that they could do to 
assist with this. Mr. Hall said that any contact for assistance through the State and 
Arizona Commerce Authority for funding to support the project would be beneficial. He 
said that they would be doing site visits later in the fall and he would be in contact with 
the City/County for appropriate introductions. 
 
Councilmember Brewster thanked Mr. Hall and Supervisor Babbott thanked everyone 
who had been working on the project. 
 
 

 



Flagstaff City Council/County Board of Supervisors 
Joint Work Session of September 9, 2013  Page 3 
 
6.         ADOT Interstate 11 Corridor Justification Report  
 
 FMPO Manager David Wessel introduced Carlos Lopez with Arizona Department of 

Transportation (ADOT) and Marissa Walker with Arizona Commerce Authority (ACA). 
 
 Mr. Lopez gave a PowerPoint presentation, Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part 

hereof, regarding the proposed I-11 Corridor which addressed the following: 
 
 INTERMOUNTAIN WEST CORRIDOR – UPDATE 
 BACKGROUND 
  
 He said that in 2012 a Transportation Bill was passed that identified I-11 between the 

Phoenix metro area and Las Vegas metro area, but there were no additional funds 
available. As a result, ADOT partnered with Nevada Department of Transportation 
(NDOT) to do a joint planning study which would entail the justification and business 
cases. 

 
 ALIGNMENT 
 
 Mr. Lopez noted that the public may have seen other routes proposed in the past, but he 

wanted to clarify that no routes have been determined; the maps are speculation at this 
time. 

 
 UPDATE SUMMARY – PHASES 1 & 2 DELIVERABLES 
 POSSIBLE ECONOMIC SCENARIOS AFFECTING THE CORRIDOR 
  
 Mr. Lopez then skipped to Slide 14 
 
 POSSIBLE ECONOMIC SCENARIOS AFFECTING THE CORRIDOR 
 SETTING THE FOUNDATION FOR THE STUDY 
 CORRIDOR FEASIBLITY ANALYSIS 
 EVALUATION PROCESS 
 STUDY WEBSITE:   WWW.I11STUDY.COM 
  
 Vice Mayor Evans asked about the forecast of I-17. Mr. Lopez said that within the 

Justification Report they have forecasted out to 2040 and with or without the I-11 project 
there will continue to be congestion on I-17. 

 
 Vice Mayor Evans said that it came to her attention from the hotel industry that they 

were worried about the concept of I-11 taking traffic off I-17 and moving it to the west. 
She said that the real economic impact is referenced with the metro Phoenix and 
Las Vegas areas, but she asked about the impact to those cities bypassed such as 
Flagstaff, Williams, Seligman, and Ashfork. 

 
 She said that there is concern because it was being called the I-11 Justification Report 

as the lodging industry was concerned with the economic impact on Flagstaff. Another 
issue that came up was that it talks about it running through rural Arizona, but it benefits 
two metro areas and the rural communities do not want to pay for it. Mr. Lopez said that 
no funding has been identified at this time. 

 

http://www.i11study.com/


Flagstaff City Council/County Board of Supervisors 
Joint Work Session of September 9, 2013  Page 4 
 
 Ms. Walker with ACA said that they were just now starting. The process is getting more 

sophisticated, but the ACA has never been involved with this nor has ADOT ever done a 
business case for a project. She said that the implications for their study, which is 
scoped out to be completed around November, do not get into specific communities. It 
addresses more what the implication is for the state. She said that it is a long-term 
journey on the project. They will need to get a deeper dive, and she was sure that 
Flagstaff was not the only one concerned with it. 

 
 Mayor Nabours said that it looks like the plan is to get a whole corridor from Mexico up 

to the Northwest. He asked if they would anticipate that any section of the corridor would 
be built if there was not a commitment for the entire corridor. He asked if there was any 
good to build the corridor from Phoenix to Las Vegas if it was not connected at both 
ends. Mr. Lopez said that they were certainly aware of connectivity needs beyond the 
Phoenix/Las Vegas section, but the scope of their study was for that segment. He said 
that there would be additional plans developed by the northern states. 

 
 Mayor Nabours asked if there was any timeline to even do the segment between 

Phoenix and Las Vegas. Mr. Lopez said that it largely depended on funding, whether it 
was through a P3 or some other type of funding mechanism; that would be the next step 
in searching for funding alternatives. 

 
 Mayor Nabours asked if there was the possibility that the study would show there was a 

need for a freeway between Phoenix and Las Vegas regardless of whether it was 
connected. Mr. Lopez said that they were working through justification and the major 
trends, such as freight movement. He said that the trade movement and linking 
economies of Phoenix and Las Vegas were driving factors. 

 
 Ms. Walker noted that the initial Business Case is available on the website. 
 
 Supervisor Ryan clarified that P3 meant public/private partnership. He added that 

citizens could go to the website to find out more information and they could also 
comment on the website. Ms. Walker said that they will continue having stakeholder 
meetings as they get into the study and would be coming back in the future. 

 
7.         Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030: Place Matters – Transmittal of document from the 

Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) to the Council and Board of Supervisors  
 

 Comprehensive Planning Manager Kim Sharp began the PowerPoint presentation which 
addressed the following: 

 
 HOW THE CITY/COUNTY HAVE WORKED TOGETHER ON THIS 
 SCHEDULE FORWARD 
 OVERVIEW  
 GOALS, POLICIES & STRATEGIES 
 HOW THE REGIONAL PLAN WORKS 
 
 Mr. Burke thanked the citizens group and staff support on the Regional Plan. He said 

that it was a vision of what they want their community to look like and be like in the 
future. Goals are smaller bites of the vision and policies are deliberate courses of action 
to achieve the goals. 



Flagstaff City Council/County Board of Supervisors 
Joint Work Session of September 9, 2013  Page 5 
 
 
 He said that the document is generally used by the Council to make decisions on 

predictable occasions such as with rezones, major plan amendments, Capital 
Improvements plans, etc. 

 
 HOW THE REGIONAL PLAN WILL BE USED  
 
 Ms. D’Andrea said that by ordinance the Council must consider whether a development 

plan is consistent with the Regional Plan before approving a zone change. Council 
would look at the goals and policies in the Regional Plan and would decide what is most 
compelling in any particular case. A court would almost never overturn the Council’s 
decision as it gives great deference to legislative action. She said that this was a policy 
document; it does not have the force of law like the Zoning Code. It is used to help the 
Council make decisions based on the vision the citizens of Flagstaff laid out. 

 
 HOW THE COMMUNITY ARRIVED AT THIS POINT  
 
 Mr. Burke said that with that context he asked that the Council review the draft document 

with two perspectives—1) it is a vision, an aspiration; and 2) it is about balance and 
compromise. 

 
 COCONINO COUNTY COLLABORATION 
 
 John Aber, Coconino County Acting Community Development Director, continued with 

the PowerPoint noting that from a County perspective, it was important to remember that 
the Regional Plan holds a different position in the hierarchy of plans at the City versus 
the County. At the City, the Regional Plan serves as the City’s General Plan. By 
contrast, in the unincorporated County areas, the Regional Plan becomes another 
member of their “family” of plans under the umbrella of the Coconino County 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 
 County Senior Civil Attorney Bill Ring then gave a history of how the Regional Plan 2030 

came to be, starting back in the 1990’s with the development of the Flagstaff Vision 
20/20 and Flagstaff Open Spaces and Greenways Plan. During that time the Arizona 
Legislature created the Growing Smarter Versions I and II requiring cities and counties 
to maintain, and update, comprehensive plans. 

 
 He said that the County’s role was to consider and support policies that discouraged 

sprawl in to the County as a way of supporting the planning discipline that was 
happening in the City. Within the Flagstaff Metropolitan Planning Area the Council would 
support a “regional” approach to land use. The City and County have been 
communicating and coordinating their efforts because they choose to, not because they 
had to. 

 
 Mr. Ring said that for the City, the 2030 plan provides guidance to the entire organization 

on things like the size and location of infrastructure such as streets and stormwater, the 
community design of buildings and places, and the importance of the downtown as a 
focal point of community character. For the County, the desires are similar but the focal 
points are different. 

 



Flagstaff City Council/County Board of Supervisors 
Joint Work Session of September 9, 2013  Page 6 
 
 He said that State statute requires that a City General Plan be approved by a vote of its 

citizens, which makes sense because for City residents it is their one, comprehensive, 
all-inclusive Plan. County comprehensive plans are adopted by vote of the Board of 
Supervisors because the County is composed of several municipalities. 

  
 Paul Babbitt, Chairman of the Citizens Advisory Committee, said that on behalf of the 

Regional Plan Citizen Advisory Committee, he was pleased to present this formal 
presentation of the draft Flagstaff Regional Plan 2030 to the elected officials. He and the 
Committee’s Vice Chairman, Carol Bousquet, both appreciate the dedication of the 
community consisting of many volunteers, including those that had to leave and those 
that joined part way into the process. 

 
 He said that it was a very diverse group and each member wore an array of hats within 

the community. They were careful not to fall into representing a singular interest, but 
rather the entire community. He said that they began the process with agreeing that the 
2001 plan, which this was an update to, was a solid base on which to build. The plan 
seeks to balance the diverse opinions and competing interests on the CAC and within 
the region. 

  
 GUIDING PRINCIPLES 
 
 Vice Chairman Bousquet said that she saw the plan as a jigsaw puzzle with lots of little 

pieces that they have worked to fit together to represent their community’s vision for the 
future. She said that the process of getting the pieces to fit required many careful 
deliberations to find balance. Further refinement will now take place, but she urged the 
Council and Board to consider careful adjustments that will, in the end, maintain an even 
and balance vision represented by the jigsaw puzzle. 

 
 FUTURE GROWTH ILLUSTRATION 
 
 Ms. Bousquet said that the process involved nearly five years of robust public discussion 

and debates, evolving into the document before them. It is clearly a policy general plan 
and not a prescriptive code. It enhances property owners’ choice and provides flexibility 
for future market trends. Rather than a traditional Land Use Map, it includes a Future 
Growth Illustration, and is quite different from a Zoning Map. 

 
 She said that currently all maps are available on the website as a .pdf document, but it is 

their intention to have the maps available via an interactive GIS system, in which they 
can turn the layers on and off, and zoom in and out. She said that during the process the 
members and general public often had great ideas for possible implementation 
strategies. While not adopted as part of the Plan, they did not want to lose them so they 
have been listed in Appendix B, and can serve as an excellent resource for 
implementation.  

 
 COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTORS 
 
 Planning Director Jim Cronk thanked the CAC, elected officials, and the Steering 

Committee and staff cooperation. He thanked all of the community members who 
participated, including the multiple groups that have hosted discussions in the last year. 

 



Flagstaff City Council/County Board of Supervisors 
Joint Work Session of September 9, 2013  Page 7 
 
 Mr. Burke added that it was a reference document and can be referenced in the annual 

goal setting by Council, and can guide all staff summaries, showing the connections 
related with the Plan, and also through the capital improvements program process. 

 
 A short break was held from 5:38 p.m. to 5:51 p.m. 
 
 Supervisor Ryan asked if any members of the CAC wished to speak at this time. 
 
 Nat White said that he would like to make two assertions. First, twelve elected officials 

looked at the volunteers and selected the members that did a wonderful job, not based 
on those they knew but more on how they were involved in the communities, the types of 
businesses they had, etc. and they did a good job. 

  
 Second, he said that he was involved with the Guide 2000 and 2020 Visioning efforts, as 

well as the Greenways Plan, and worked on the first Regional Plan. There has been a 
continuous, non-changing theme clearly reflected in the Guiding Principles. It was a 
wonderful vision and plan for a region like theirs which is isolated from influences of 
surrounding towns as in the Valley. 

 
 Mayor Nabours said that it is a plan that State law requires of cities every ten years. 

Back in 2008 the Council and Board started the process by appointing a citizens 
committee. The Plan has to be sent for approval by the voters. The Council has the 
difficult job of trying to determine the will of the voters and presenting what they think 
they will vote for.  

 
 Supervisor Ryan said that he was a member of the Steering Committee, and speaking 

on behalf of the Board, the last Plan had a lot of foresight in that they acknowledged that 
they were separate but it made sense to consider what happens in one place affects the 
other, and they decided to work together on the Plan. He said that there was a broad 
cross-section of community considered and appointed and they appreciated their time, 
expertise and love of the region. 

 
 The following individuals addressed the Council opposed to the current proposed 

Regional Plan: 
 
 Joy Staveley 
 Judy Sall (letter read by Ms. Staveley) 
 Carol Kendall 
 Don Peavey 
 Rob Wilson 
 Bill McCullough 
 Mike Sistak, representing the Flagstaff Chamber of Commerce 
 Gaylord Staveley 
 Sandy Burns 
 Sophia Katz 
 
 Michelle Thomas, North Country Health Care, said that she was supportive of the Plan 

as healthy citizens are fundamental. 
 



Flagstaff City Council/County Board of Supervisors 
Joint Work Session of September 9, 2013  Page 8 
 
 Mayor Nabours recognized Bruce Aiken, an artist specializing in Northern Arizona 

scenes, for his picture which became the cover of the Regional Plan book. Mayor 
Nabours and Supervisor Ryan then presented a framed, signed print of the picture to 
each member of the CAC, thanking them for their hard work on the committee: Paul 
Babbitt, Chairman; Carol Bousquet, Vice Chairman; Michael Chaveas; Jean Griego; 
Richard Henn; Maury Herman; Julie Leid; Judy Louks; Jerome Naleski; Eva Putzova; 
Trisk Rensink; William Ring; Larry Stevens; Nat White; Alex Wright; Ben Anderson; 
Susan Bean; Bea Cooley; Shaula Hedwall; Ken Kaemmerle; Devonna McLaughlin; Mike 
Nesbitt; Eunice Tso; Don Walters; and Cynthia White. 

 
 Mayor Nabors noted that many people submitted photographs that were used 

throughout the document and they were listed at the front of the Plan and he thanked 
them. 

 
 He said that they have found that it is easier to edit than to create a document, and he 

thanked the committee members for presenting them with the hard work done. He 
appreciated that they have brought this forward to the Council. 

 
 Supervisor Babbott thanked the members as well. He said that his observation is that 

strong and vibrant communities don’t happen by default. They happen by a long slog of 
a process and he appreciated Carol’s comments. It clearly is not a broken community. 
They have incredible assets and he thanked the CAC and the community for starting this 
process. He said that there would be more public opportunity input. He said that is 
exactly why their region is so different. They don’t always agree, but they often agree on 
the outcomes. 

 
8.       Public Participation  
 
 Supervisor Ryan welcomed Cynthia Seelhammer, the new County Manager for 

Coconino County. 
 
9.       Informational Items To/From Chairman, Supervisors and County Manager/Mayor, 

Council and City Manager. 
 
10.       Adjournment 

 
The Joint Work Session of the Flagstaff City Council and Coconino County Board of 
Supervisors held September 9, 2013, adjourned at 6:52 p.m. 

 
 

 
      
      _________________________________________  
      MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING (EXECUTIVE SESSION) OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY 
COUNCIL HELD ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2013, IN THE STAFF CONFERENCE 
ROOM, SECOND FLOOR OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY HALL, 211 WEST ASPEN, 
FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
 Mayor Nabours called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 

 Present:      Absent:  

MAYOR NABOURS      
COUNCILMEMBER BAROTZ   
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER   
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS 
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON 
COUNCILMEMBER WOODSON 

 Others present: City Manager Kevin Burke; City Attorney Michelle D’Andrea. 

3. Recess into Executive Session 

 Mayor Nabours moved to recess into Executive Session; seconded; passed 
unanimously. The Flagstaff City Council recessed into Executive Session at 5:02 p.m. 

4.       Executive Session: 

A.     Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the 
public body; and discussion or consultation with the attorneys of the public body 
in order to consider its position and instruct its attorneys regarding the public 
body's position regarding contracts that are the subject of negotiations, in 
pending or contemplated litigation or in settlement discussions conducted in 
order to avoid or resolve litigation, pursuant to ARS Section 38-431.03(A)(3) and 
(4), respectively. 

i.     Elevation, Campus Crest, Flagstaff Senior Meadows Development/Sewer 
Capacity Fees and other fees  

5.       Adjournment 

 The Special Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held September 10, 2013, adjourned at 
5:27 p.m. 

 

      ________________________________________  
      MAYOR 



Flagstaff City Council 
Special Meeting (Executive Session) of September 10, 2013 Page 2 
 

 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  9. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Mark Richardson, Operations Manager

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE: 
Emergency Purchase of a 700 HP Variable Frequency Drive(VFD) Motor Control for the Shop Well

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the purchase from Applied Ingenuity, LLC in the amount of $ 94,797.00.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
On June 28th, the Shop Well Variable Frequency Drive unit for the main well failed. On July 3rd, it was
determined that the 700 HP unit could not be repaired and our well pump vendor was contacted to inquire
on the cost and availability of a replacement. The Shop Well is the second largest producing water well 
with a daily capacity of 1.44 million gallons. Repair of this well was crucial to providing water to our
customers during the summer peak season. Under the guidance of Purchasing, the purchase order was
created July 9, 2013 in the amount of $114,397.00. 

Subsidiary Decisions Points: Manufacturer of the original unit had all internal parts for the 700 HP 
Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) available for immediate shipment. This allowed us to utilize the existing
cabinet. Replacement of the entire VFD would have taken 16 to 18 weeks.  Instead the components were
installed and the well back in operation within 30 days.

Financial Impact:
The purchase was made on July 9, 2013 using Utilities Local Well Maintenance Account
201-4716-720-2205 and supplemented by 201-4724-720-2205. These accounts are for the maintenance
and repair of wells. Instead the variable frequency drive motor control was purchased as an emergency
purchase.  

Connection to Council Goal:
1. Repair Replace maintain infrastructure (streets & utilities)

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
No prior decision

Options and Alternatives:
Prepare a complete bid specification and advertise for a complete 700 HP Variable Frequency Drive. The
expected delivery would have been 16 to 18 weeks after award and acceptance by Council. The
potential down time for this critical water production well would have been 6 to 7 months.



Background/History:
The Shop Well is the second largest well at 1.44 Million Gallons per Day (MGD) and is a critical piece of
the City's water production infrastructure.

Key Considerations:
All parts necessary to replace the Variable Frequency drive were available for immediate shipment.
Allowing for transportation, stripping the existing cabinets and install of the new VFD, emergency
replacement was completed within four weeks. Staff procured these parts in advance of City Council's
authorization following Management Services procurement procedures due to the emergency
requirement of having this critical water supply back operational as soon as possible.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
Shop Well is a crucial piece of water supply infrastructure. Minimizing the down time of any water supply
well is important especially during peak demand periods. 

Community Involvement:
Inform

Attachments:  Shop Well VFD Replacement
Emergency Purchase











COF – PROCUREMENT CODE MANUAL:    ARTICLE 19         EMERGENCY PURCHASE  

 A.            Notwithstanding any other provision in this Procurement Code Manual, the Director 
may make or authorize others to make emergency procurements if there is a threat to public 
health, welfare, or safety or if a situation exists which makes compliance with the procurement 
process specified in Articles 10, “Formal Procurement Process—Invitation For Bids”, Article 11, 
“Formal Procurement Process—Request For Proposals” and Article 12, “Formal Procurement 
Process—Professional Design Services, Capital Improvements/Construction And Construction 
Services” contrary to the public interest.  Emergency procurements shall be made with such 
competition as is practicable under the circumstances. 

 B.            A written determination of the basis for the emergency and for the selection of the 
particular Bidder or Proposer shall be included in the contract file. 

 C.            Emergency purchases authorized by the Director which exceed the formal 
procurement limit, shall be reported to the City Council, as a confirming payment. 

 Section 19.1         Conditions for Emergency Purchase 

 An emergency shall be deemed to exist if: 

 A.            There is a great public calamity; 

B.            There is immediate need to prepare for national or local defense; 

 C.            There is a breakdown in machinery or an essential service which requires the        
immediate purchase of supplies or services to protect the public health, welfare or safety; or 

 D.            An essential departmental operation affecting the public health, welfare or safety 
would be greatly hampered if the prescribed formal or informal purchasing procedure would 
cause an undue delay in procurement of the needed item or service. 

 Section 19.2         Emergency Purchase Procedure 

 A.            If the emergency occurs during Purchasing Office hours, the requesting department 
shall contact the Director or a Purchasing Agent who shall procure or authorize the procurement 
of the necessary materials, services or construction and fully document the purchase.   

 B.            In the event the emergency occurs after Purchasing Office hours, any City employee 
may make any necessary procurement after receipt of authorization from the Department's or 
Division’s Manager or Supervisor.    

                1.   By the next working day, a full report of the circumstances of the emergency 
purchase shall be made by the person making the purchase.  The report shall be 
filed with the Director for inclusion in the appropriate Purchasing records; and 

     2.   If the purchase exceeded the formal bid limit, the Director and the City                 
          employee who made the emergency purchase, shall seek approval of the                                            
          purchase from the City Council as a confirming payment. 
 



  10. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Randy Whitaker, Project Manager

Co-Submitter: Stacey Brechler-Knaggs, Grants Manager

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration of Amendment No. Two regarding the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)/Joint
Project Agreement (JPA):  #11-096I between the City of Flagstaff (City) and the Arizona Department of
Transportation (ADOT) for the FY 2013 Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP), Transverse
Pavement Marking Improvement Program.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Amendment No.Two regarding the IGA/JPA between the City of Flagstaff and Arizona
Department of Transportation

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Approving the IGA/JPA Amendment No. Two, will obligate Federal HSIP funding for the
Transverse Pavement Marking Improvement Program for an additional $90,000 to the existing IGA/JPA
of $302,000 for a total project of $392,000.  Transverse pavement markings are perpendicular, short line
markings such as those found in crosswalks and stop bars. 

Subsidiary Decision Points: This project is for construction of the Transverse Pavement Marking
Improvement Program and will be administered by ADOT. The project has been bid and is estimated to
start in late September 2013. 

Financial Impact:
This IGA/JPA Amendment No. Two, will fund the Transverse Pavement Marking Improvement Program
in the amount of $90,000.  The Total Cost of the Transverse Pavement Marking Improvement Program is
estimated to be $392,000 and will be paid for from HSIP funds. The Federal Share is funded at $392,000
(100%).

Connection to Council Goal:
Repair, replace, maintain infrastructure (streets & utilities)

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Yes - Original IGA/JPA for FY 2011 HSIP funds awarded on May 17, 2011 in the amount of $150,000.
Amendment No. One was approved on May 15, 2012 for an additional $152,000. 



Options and Alternatives:
1) Approve the IGA/JPA
2) Reject the IGA/JPA which removes the obligation of the funds for this purpose. 

Background/History:
The purpose of the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) is to achieve a significant reduction in
traffic fatalities and serious injuries on public roads. This is to be accomplished through the development
and implementation of the Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) which is a statewide-coordinated safety
plan that provides a comprehensive framework for reducing highway fatalities and serious injuries on all
public roads. SHSP is intended to identify the state’s key safety needs and guide HSIP investment
decisions. Funding is from the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration
through the Arizona Department of Transportation which is responsible for administering the HSIP in
Arizona.

Key Considerations:
This project will replace all the stop bars and crosswalks at 310 intersections on Flagstaff's streets with a
more durable epoxy/thermo product.

The HSIP funds must have an approved IGA/JPA to be obligated by ADOT. Any funding not obligated by
the City or County in the FMPO Region within this fiscal year is returned to ADOT.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
The funding per FY year is:
FY 2011 - $150,000
FY 2012 - $152,000
FY 2013 -   $90,000
The Total Cost of the Transverse Pavement Marking Improvement Program is estimated to be $392,000
and will be paid for from HSIP funds. The Federal Share is funded at $392,000 (100%).

Community Benefits and Considerations:
Provide additional safety and reduced maintenance cost. 

Community Involvement:
Inform:  Although there has been no formal public involvement process, this project has been approved
by the Flagstaff Metropolitan Planning Organization for inclusion in the Transportation Improvement
Program.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
Approving the IGA/JPA, will authorize the funds for the project up to the maximum available. 

Pro: All intersections currently planned can be striped with stop bars and crosswalks
  Rejecting the IGA/JPA, will not obligate the additional funding. 

Con: Scope of work will be reduced 

Attachments:  IGA Amended

















  10. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Jeff Bauman, Traffic Engineer

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No.  2013-06:  An Ordinance amending Flagstaff City
Code Title 2, Boards and Commissions, Chapter 2-12, Transportation Commission, for the purpose of
changing the membership of the Transportation Commission, and removing the Commission's appellate
authority. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Read Ordinance No. 2013-06 by title only for the final time
2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2013-06 by title only (if approved above)
3) Adopt Ordinance No. 2013-06 on September 17, 2013.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
The City of Flagstaff established the Transportation Commission, as currently constituted and structured,
in 2001 to serve as a citizen advisory group charged with taking a comprehensive, long-range and
in-depth look at the broad range of transportation issues facing the City of Flagstaff (City).  In 2006 the
City became a member of the Northern Arizona Intergovernmental Transportation Authority (NAIPTA). 
The City values input and advice from NAIPTA, and establishing a permanent seat on the
Transportation Commission for a NAIPTA representative will help increase transportation project
coordination between the two agencies.  This will result in seven voting members of the Transportation
Commission, consisting of five at-large members from the general public, one member appointed to
respresent the Flagstaff Unified School District, and one member appointed to represent NAIPTA.

The Transportation Commission is currently vested with appellate authority, hearing appeals of "traffic
regulation decisions" made by the City Traffic Engineer.  The City Traffic Engineer is currently supervised
by the City Engineer, who ensures that the City Traffic Engineer's decisions are not arbitrary, that all
necessary criteria have been met, and that all positions have been adequately considered. 

Subsidiary Decisions Points: The Transportation Commission voted to recomend approval of this
Resolution to the City Council.

Financial Impact:
None

Connection to Council Goal:
Review all Commissions
Effective governance



Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
There has not been any previous decisions made on this issue other than when first reading of the
Ordinance was held at the September 3, 2013, Council Meeting.

Options and Alternatives:
The City Council can choose to accept the Ordinance, direct staff to amend the Ordinance, or reject the
Ordinance.

Community Involvement:
Involve - The Transportation Commission held a Public Meeting on October 3, 2012, their was no Public
Comment.  The Transportation Commission voted to recommend approval of this Ordinance to the City
Council.

Attachments:  Ord. 2013-06



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-06 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE TITLE 2, BOARDS 
AND COMMISSIONS, CHAPTER 2-12, TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF CHANGING THE MEMBERSHIP OF THE 
FLAGSTAFF TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, AND REMOVING THE 
COMMISSION’S APPELLATE AUTHORITY  

 
 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Flagstaff established the Transportation Commission, as currently 
constituted and structured, in 2001 to serve as a citizen advisory group charged with taking a 
comprehensive, long-range and in-depth look at the broad range of transportation issues facing 
the City of Flagstaff; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2006 the City of Flagstaff became a member agency of the Northern Arizona 
Intergovernmental Transportation Authority (“NAIPTA”), a public transportation agency 
established and operating pursuant to ARS § 28-9101; and  
 
WHEREAS, input and advice from NAIPTA would further assist the City in matching 
transportation projects and capital expenditures to long-term City transportation goals; and  
 
WHEREAS, currently, the Transportation Commission is vested with appellate authority, hearing 
appeals of “traffic regulation decisions” made by the City Traffic Engineer; and  
 
WHEREAS, currently, there are two positions, City Engineer and Community Development 
Director, that supervise the work of the Traffic Engineer, and ensure that his or her decisions 
are not arbitrary, that all necessary criteria have been met, and that all positions have been 
adequately considered. 
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. That Chapter 2-12, Transportation Commission, is hereby amended as follows: 

 
CHAPTER 2-12 

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 
SECTION 2-12-001-0001 CITY POLICY 
 
It is the policy of the City, in the exercise of the powers vested in the City Council for the 
protection of the public safety and promotion of the general welfare, to promote the safety of the 
traveling public and to improve utilization of the public ways for all forms of transportation. 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-06  Page 2 
 

SECTION 2-12-001-0002 CREATION OF THE TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION AND 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
A. There is hereby created a commission to be known as the Transportation Commission.   
 
B. The Commission shall consist of seven (7) voting members and two (2) ex-officio, non-

voting members. Each voting member shall be appointed by the City Council and shall 
continually reside within the City during the tenure of appointment. The Commission’s 
membership shall be as follows: 

 
1. The seven voting members of the Commission shall consist of all of the following: 
 

(a) Five at large members selected from the general public. 
(b) One member appointed to represent the Flagstaff Unified School District. 
(c) One member appointed to represent the Northern Arizona 

Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority.  
 
2. The two ex officio, nonvoting members shall consist of the following: 
 

(a) The Traffic Engineer, or his or her designee. 
(b) The Chief of Police, or his or her designee. 

 
1. Voting members: 

 
a. The Superintendent of the Flagstaff Unified School District or his/her 

designated representative. 
 
b. Six (6) citizen members appointed by the City Council. 

 
2. Ex-officio, non-voting members: 
 

a. One City of Flagstaff police officer appointed by the Chief of Police. 
 
b. The Traffic Engineer. 

 
 In addition, the City Council may designate a Councilmember representative as a 

non-voting, ex-officio member of the Commission. 
 
BC. Officers of the Commission shall be elected by the voting members of the Commission 

from the citizen membership. The commission shall annually select one of its members to 
serve as chairperson. 

 
(Ord. No. 2007-21, Amended 02/06/2007; Ord. 2010-14, Amended 6/15/10) 
 
SECTION 2-12-001-0003 TERMS OF OFFICE: 
 
Citizen Mmembers of the Commission shall serve staggered three (3) year terms. No member 
may serve more than two three-year terms. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-06  Page 3 
 

A member's term of office shall commence with the first regular Commission meeting following 
his appointment and terminate with the regular Commission meeting at which his successor 
takes office. 
 
A Commission member who is absent from three consecutive regular meetings may have their 
remaining term terminated by a vote of the City Council upon recommendation of the 
Commission. 
 
 (Ord. No. 1942, Amended, 05/06/97); Ord. 2010-14, Amended 6/15/2010) 
 
SECTION 2-12-001-0004 MEETINGS 
 
The Commission shall meet quarterly and/or at the request of its chairperson for the disposal of 
such business as may come before it. at least once each month at a regularly scheduled time 
and place to be designated by the Commission, and shall hold such special meetings as the 
membership shall decide and at such times and places as the Commission shall specify. 
 
Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Board and Commission Members’ 
Handbook adopted by resolution of the Flagstaff City Council, and in compliance with all other 
local, state, and federal laws. 
 
A quorum shall be one more than half the voting membership of the Commission. 
 
(Ord. 2010-14, Amended 06/15/2010) 
 
SECTION 2-12-001-0005 FUNCTIONS OF THE COMMISSION 
 
The functions of the Commission shall be: 
 
A. To adopt traffic regulations or deny requests for changes in traffic regulations as follows: 
 

1. To investigate and make determinations on traffic regulation items forwarded to it by 
the Transportation Engineering Program. 

 
2. To hear the appeals of traffic regulation decisions of the Transportation Engineering 

Program as set forth in 9-01-001-0007 C. of the City Code 
 
3. To forward to the City Council those traffic regulation items which it deems to be of 

sufficient interest to the general public as to require decision by the Council. 
 
AB. To formulate and recommend policies and ordinances to the City Council governing the 

general operations of the City streets, alleys, sidewalks and bikeways. 
 
BC. To review periodically traffic regulation actions of the Transportation Engineering 

Program. 
 
CD. To promote pedestrian, bicycle, transit and driver education programs in the school 

systems and to disseminate traffic and safety information to the public at large. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-06  Page 4 
 

DE. To annually advise the City Council of the progress and expenditures of the City’s 
Transportation Capital Improvements Program as related to the Election of May 2000.  
To carry out this function, the Transportation Commission shall:  

 
1. Meet biannually annually with the City’s Capital Improvements and Financial 

Services Staff to review the progress of the Transportation Capital Improvement 
Program’s (“CIP”) planning and programming efforts; 

 
2. Ensure there is a coordinated approach for budgeting and expending 

transportation sales tax revenues for all transportation modes;  
 
3. Provide input on the Transportation CIP’s prioritization scoring criteria;  
 
4. Provide a forum for public comment and input regarding the Transportation CIP; 
 
5. Publish an annual Transportation CIP Advisory Report; and 
 
6. Present the findings of said report to the City Council during a public meeting in 

conjunction with the annual budget process. At a minimum, the report shall 
discuss the previous years’ income/expenditures, construction projects and 
planning activities. 

  
EF. To perform other duties relating to public safety within the scope of this Commission. 
 
(Ord. No. 2007-21, Amended 02/06/2007; Ord. No. 2010-14, Amended 06/15/2010) 
 
SECTION 2-12-001-0006 OTHER POWERS: 
 
A. The Commission shall have the power to appoint subcommittees for the purpose of 

defining problems areas of traffic and traffic safety; proposing solutions to defined 
problems; or for any other undertaking which will reasonably lead to safer and more 
efficient traffic flow in the City. 

 
B. The City Council hereby establishes the following advisory committees to the 

Transportation Commission to provide advice on special traffic and transportation topics, 
and delegates to the commission the power to appoint members to these committees.  
No member of the Transportation Commission shall be a member of an advisory 
committee.  The City Council retains the power to remove a member of an advisory 
committee for the reasons specified in the City’s Board and Commission Members’ 
Handbook. 

 
1. Bicycle Advisory Committee:  Seven (7) citizen members appointed for a three-

year term.  No member may serve more than two three-year terms. 
 
2. Pedestrian Advisory Committee:  Seven (7) citizen members appointed for a 

three-year term.  No member may serve more than two three-year terms. 
 
C. The Transportation Commission shall define the operating procedures of the advisory 

committees, assuring compliance with the Arizona Open Meeting Law, and the City’s 
Board and Commission Members’ Handbook, including, but not limited to: 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-06  Page 5 
 

1.  The advisory committees shall report on their activities to the Transportation 
Commission at each commission meeting. 

 
2.     The advisory committees shall investigate, consider, and make 

recommendations to the Transportation Commission on items assigned to them 
by the Commission regarding their respective areas of interest. 

 
3.    The advisory committees shall bring to the Transportation Commission items of a 

planning, design, or regulatory nature that come to their attention regarding the 
City’s pedestrian and bikeway systems. 

 
(Ord. No. 2007-21, Amended 03/06/2007); (Ord. No. 2007-21, Amended 02/06/2007); 
(Ordinance No. 2010-14, 06/15/2010) 
 
SECTION 2-12-001-0007 APPEAL PROCEDURE: 
 
Traffic regulation decisions of the Transportation Commission, as set forth in Section 2-12-001-
0006 A., may be appealed by any aggrieved party to the City Council by presentation of a 
request for such an appeal in writing to the Traffic Engineering Section within ten (10) working 
days of the date of the Commission's action.  The appeal shall be placed on the currently open 
agenda for the next regularly scheduled Council Meeting.  The Council may hear arguments 
and shall make the final decision on the matter.  (Ord. 1349, 2-19-85); (Ord. No. 2007-21, 
Amended 02/06/2007); (Ordinance No. 2010-14, 06/15/2010) 
 
SECTION 2. That the City Clerk be authorized to correct typographical and grammatical errors, 
as well as errors of wording and punctuation, as necessary; and that the City Clerk be 
authorized to make formatting changes needed for purposes of clarity and form, if required, to 
be consistent with Flagstaff City Code. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council and approved by the Mayor of the City of 
Flagstaff this    day of      , 2013. 
 
 
 
 
               
        MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
CITY ATTORNEY 



  10. C.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Andy Wagemaker, Revenue Director

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE:
Consideration and Approval of Miscellaneous Receivable Account Write-offs: Delinquent and
uncollectable accounts for Fiscal Year 2013.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the write-off of delinquent and uncollectable miscellaneous receivable accounts in the
amount of $3,831.73.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Generally accepted business practices allow for the write-off of uncollectable accounts. City staff has
exhausted collection efforts on the eligible accounts and will no longer actively collect on them. Where
possible, the amount owed has been applied against the credit of the debtor and may be collected in the
future. Pursuant to federal consumer debt collection law, delinquent account information is not subject to
public release.

Subsidiary Decisions Points: None 

Financial Impact:
None that is unbudgeted. Each year, the City anticipates that there will be uncollectable miscellaneous
receivable accounts and reserves an amount at year end for these accounts.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance.

Previous Council Decision on This:
No.

Options and Alternatives:
Authorize the write-off of uncollectable miscellaneous receivable accounts.
Do not authorize the write-off off uncollectable miscellaneous receivable accounts and continue
collection efforts.

  



Background/History:
Before any account is eligible for write-off, staff must initiate collection efforts on each account after it
becomes delinquent. When collection efforts are exhausted, the account is eligible for write-off. If
possible, any amounts due are applied to the customer's credit. If placed on the customer’s credit, the
amount owed remains active for seven years after the delinquency date. Application against the credit of
the debtor may lead to the recovery of some of the delinquent amounts in the future. This often occurs
when customers apply for credit via other avenues (i.e., mortgages, car loans, apartment rentals, etc.).

Examples of miscellaneous receivable write-offs may include, but are not limited to, the following possible
types: landfill, airport, fire contract, retiree insurance, damage claims, among others. Total miscellaneous
receivable billings in FY13 were approximately $9.45  million. The write-offs equate to approximately
0.04% of the total amount.

Pursuant to federal consumer debt collection law, delinquent account information is not subject to public
release.

Write-Off
Year

Amt of
Write-Off

Annual Amt
Billed

% of Amt
Billed

FY13 $3,831.73 $9.4 million 0.04%
FY12 $33,322.21 $11.1 million 0.30%
FY11 $77,420.61 $12.5 million 0.62%
FY10 $107,059.95 $10.6 million 1.01%
FY09 $7,081.09 $8.6 million 0.08%

Miscellaneous Receivable Write-Offs (5 Year History)

Write-Off Breakdown Information 

Write-Off
Year

Total # of
Accounts

# of Accts
Greater
than $1,000

# of Accts
Between
$500 and
$1,000

# of Accts
Between $0
and $500

FY13 23 0 1 22
FY12 24 7 1 16

Key Considerations:
Staff, using billing statements, letters, and telephone calls, has worked the write-off accounts. When
customers fail to make payments, they are denied access to future City services and, when possible, the
amount owed is applied to their credit.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
It is sound financial management practice to reduce assets to reflect their true valuation. Failure to
write-off accounts deemed uncollectable overstates the asset value of the City.

Community Involvement:
Inform. Yearly write-offs ensure that the City is following generally accepted business practices.



Inform. Yearly write-offs ensure that the City is following generally accepted business practices.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
None.

Attachments: 



  10. D.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Andy Wagemaker, Revenue Director

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE:
Consideration and Approval of Transaction Privilege (Sales) Tax Account Write-offs: Delinquent
and uncollectable accounts for Fiscal Year 2013.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the write-off of delinquent and uncollectable transaction privilege (sales) tax accounts in
the amount of $100,866.05.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Generally accepted business practices allow for the write-off of uncollectable accounts. City staff has
exhausted collection efforts on the eligible accounts and will no longer actively collect on them. The
write-offs only relate to the City's accounting records.  The City does not release recorded tax liens nor
does it clear outstanding debts from credit reporting agency records.  As a result, debt that has been
previously written-off is occasionally paid  some time later in order to clear a tax lien that has attached to
real property, or to clear up a taxpayer's personal credit.  Pursuant to state law, taxpayer information is
confidential.

Subsidiary Decisions Points: No subsidiary decision points.

Financial Impact:
None. Each year, the City anticipates that there will be uncollectable transaction privilege (sales) tax
accounts and reserves an amount at year end for these accounts. 

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance.

Previous Council Decision on This:
No.

Options and Alternatives:
Authorize the write-off of uncollectable transaction privilege (sales) tax accounts.
Do not authorize the write-off of uncollectable transaction privilege (sales) tax accounts and
continue collection efforts.



Background/History:
Before any account is eligible for write-off, staff must initiate collection efforts on each account after it
becomes delinquent. When collection efforts are exhausted, the account is eligible for write-off. If
possible, any amounts due are applied to the customer's credit. If placed on the customer’s credit, the
amount owed remains active for 7 years after the delinquency date. Application against the credit of the
debtor may lead to the recovery of some of the delinquent amounts in the future. This often occurs when
customers apply for credit via other avenues (mortgages, car loans, apartment rentals, etc.).

In FY13, the City received approximately $34.4 million in transaction privilege (sales) taxes,
transportation taxes, BBB taxes, and franchise fees. The write-offs are 0.29% of the total amount. Each
of the write-off accounts no longer operates in Flagstaff.

Pursuant to federal consumer debt collection law, delinquent account information is not subject to public
release. Pursuant to state law, taxpayer information is confidential.

Write-Off
Year

Amt of
Write-Off

Annual Amt
Billed

% of Amt
Billed

FY13 $100,866.05 $34.4 million 0.293%
FY12 $113,481.22 $33.0 million 0.344%
FY11 $109,121.32 $31.1 million 0.350%
FY10 $4,866.76 $26.8 million 0.018%
FY09 $10,345.93 $29.3 million 0.035%

Transaction Privilege (Sales) Tax Account Write-Offs (5 Year History)

Write-off Breakdown Information 

Write-Off
Year

Total # of
Accounts

# of Accts
Greater
than $1,000

# of Accts
Between
$500 and
$1,000

# of Accts
Between $0
and $500.

FY13 79 12 1 66
FY12 119 14 3 102

Key Considerations:
Staff, using billing statements, letters, and telephone calls, has worked the write-off accounts. When
customers fail to make payments, they are denied access to future City services and, when possible, the
amount owed is applied to their credit.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
It is sound financial management practice to reduce assets to reflect their true valuation. Failure to
write-off accounts deemed uncollectable overstates the asset value of the City.

Community Involvement:
Inform.  Yearly write-offs ensure that the City is following generally accepted business practices.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
None.



None.

Attachments: 



  10. E.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Andy Wagemaker, Revenue Director

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE:
Consideration and Approval of Utility Account Write-offs: Delinquent and uncollectable accounts for
Fiscal Year 2013.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the write-off of delinquent and uncollectable utility accounts in the amount of $121,300.64.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
Generally accepted business practices allow for the write-off of uncollectable accounts. City staff has
exhausted collection efforts on the eligible accounts and will no longer actively collect on them.  The City
may still recover some amounts owed, since recorded tax liens remain in place and taxpayers may seek
to clear personal credit by paying delinquent amounts.  Pursuant to state tax laws, delinquent account
information is not subject to public release.

Subsidiary Decisions Points: No subsidiary decision points.

Financial Impact:
None. Each year, the City anticipates that there will be uncollectable utility accounts and reserves an
amount at year end for these accounts.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance.

Previous Council Decision on This:
No.

Options and Alternatives:
Authorize the write-off of uncollectable utility accounts.
Do not authorize the write-off of uncollectable utility accounts and continue collection efforts.



Background/History:
Before any account is eligible for write-off, staff must initiate collection efforts on each account after it
becomes delinquent. When collection efforts are exhausted, the account is eligible for write-off. If
possible, any amounts due are applied to the customer's credit. If placed on the customer’s credit, the
amount owed remains active for 7 years after the delinquency date. Application against the credit of the
debtor may lead to the recovery of some of the delinquent amounts in the future. This often occurs when
customers apply for credit via other avenues (i.e., mortgages, car loans, apartment rentals, etc.).

Total utility billings in FY13 were approximately $32.2 million. The write-offs are approximately 0.38% of
the total amount.  The increase in FY13 is mainly due to an unfilled meter technician position (2 meter
technicians instead of 3 meter technicians) for approximately 6 months of the write-off period.  Due to the
unfilled position, Meter Services focused staff efforts on meter reading and it did not have the capacity to
perform as many meter lock-offs, a tool that helps limit the annual write-off amount. 

Pursuant to federal consumer debt collection law, delinquent account information is not subject to public
release. 

Write-Off
Year

Amt of
Write-Off

Annual Amt
Billed

% of Amt
Billed

FY13 $121,300.64 $32.2 million 0.38%
FY12 $97,198.35 $29.8 million 0.33%
FY11 $41,508.08 $26.1 million 0.16%
FY10 $60,420.89 $24.8 million 0.25%
FY09 $60,569.03 $24.2 million 0.25%

Utility Account Write-Offs (5 Year History)

Write-Off Year Utilities Public Works Storm Water Taxes
FY13 $86,993.14 $26,226.11 $4,407.71 $3,673.68
FY12 $67,007.20 $23,647.05 $3,848.82 $2,695.28

Utility Account Write-Off Breakdown History

Other Write-Off Breakdown Information

Write-Off
Year

Total # of
Accounts

# of Accts
Greater
than $1,000

# of Accts
Between
$500 and
$1,000

# of Accts
Between $0
and $500

FY13 487 14 40 433

Key Considerations:
Staff, using billing statements, letters and telephone calls, has worked the write-off accounts. When
customers fail to make payments, they may be denied access to future City services and, when possible,
the amount owed is applied to their credit.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
It is sound financial management practice to reduce assets to reflect their true valuation. Failure to
write-off accounts deemed uncollectable overstates the asset value of the City.

Community Involvement:



Inform. Yearly write-offs ensure that the City is following generally accepted business practices.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
None.

Attachments: 



  10. F.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Jerene Watson, Deputy City Manager

Co-Submitter: David McIntire, Asst. to City Manager - Real
Estate

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement with Northern Arizona Council of
Governments (NACOG) to continue operation of their Head Start programs at five city-owned facilities.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the intergovernmental agreement to allow NACOG to continue operating Head Start
programs at the five locations where they currently are operating. 

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
NACOG has conducted Head Start classroom services from various city-owned locations around the
City for more than 30 years and would like to continue doing so.  This intergovernmental
agreement combines the active leases into one umbrella agreement in order to better sustain the
long-term arrangement of this program.  It also provides NACOG with the documentation they are
needing for their federal audit in October.  

Financial Impact:
There is no change in the financial impact to this arrangement, moving the individual sites from leases to
one IGA with NACOG for their Head Start services.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Yes, by property as follows:

August 22, 1994 the City Council authorized use of city-owned property at Clark Homes, operated
by the Flagstaff Housing Authority for a Headstart/Community Facility for 20 years (expiring in
2014).

Additionally, leases were signed by the Flagstaff Housing Authority for the following properties: 

September 1, 2006, the Flagstaff Housing Authority signed a 10-year lease with NACOG for use of
facilities in Sunnyside at 1825 N. Main St.(expiring in 2016)
September 1, 2006, the Flagstaff Housing Authority signed a 10-year lease with NACOG for use of
facilities at Siler Homes @ 3581 N. Fanning Drive (expiring in 2016); original lease dates back to
1981



1981
September 1, 1980, the Flagstaff Housing Authority signed a 1-year lease that is renewed annually
until either party gives notification of intent to cancel  for use of facilities at Ponderosa, 2500 N.
First Street

No lease agreement was formalized at Cogdill until this IGA but FHA and NACOG operated under an
informal agreement that mirrored lease terms as established in the above leases. 

Options and Alternatives:
Not approving this IGA may jeopardize the federal funding of programs and work of NACOG who are
accountable to the Federal government for documenting their expenditures through agreements or
leases.

Background/History:
NACOG and the City have have existing arrangements regarding the use of property owned by the
City and Flagstaff Housing Authority which have provided benefits to the community.  City-owned facilities
at Clark Homes (1000 N. Clark Circle), Cogdill (301 S. Paseo Del Flag), Ponderosa (2500 N.
First Street), Siler Homes (3681 N. Fanning Drive) and Sunnyside (1825 N. Main Street) are used for
public purposes and benefits through the leasing or use by others. The use of each site is donated to
NACOG for the exclusive provision of program services and to help meet local grant match
requirements.  The valuation amount used for the "in-kind" match purposes at each site is determined by
a formal appraisal which NACOG obtains. 

NACOG is also responsible for preparing the sites to meet and maintain the state and local licensing
requirements.  Any other use of the City-owned site cannot infringe upon or violate the Head Start
licensing requirements.  Maintenance of all sites are "general use" maintenance performed by NACOG
with repairs and utilities noted per center by agreement.  NACOG also carries insurance of
$3,000,000,000 at each center listing the City as the co-insured.

For more than 30 years, NACOG has leased properties from the City via the Flagstaff Housing Authority
(FHA) to provide early childhood education, recreational and other services to children in the community
through the Head Start offerings.  This IGA will bring together the disparate agreements and put in one
document the rent and terms of the agreement and responsibilities of respective parties.

Key Considerations:
It is in the best interests of the citizens of Flagstaff for the City and NACOG to enter into this Agreement
which will continue to facilitate educational and recreational activities to children in the community via
Head Start programming.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
NACOG serves 414 children in the entire community through their programming at five sites around the
City. 

Community Involvement:
Collaborate:  in partnership with NACOG, Head Start educational offerings are provided to the community
to supplement early childhood education for eligible families and children to take advantage of these
services.

Attachments:  IGA



1 

After recording, return to: 
City Clerk 
City of Flagstaff 
211 W. Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, AZ  86001 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

City of Flagstaff 
and 

The Northern Arizona Council of Governments 
 
This Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) is made this _________ day of 
________________________, 2013 by and between the City of Flagstaff, an Arizona 
municipal corporation with offices located at 211 West Aspen, Flagstaff, Arizona (the "City"), 
and the Northern Arizona Council of Governments, a local government political subdivision 
of the State of Arizona, with offices located at 121 East Aspen, Flagstaff, Arizona 86001 (the 
“NACOG,” and collectively with City, the “Parties”). 
 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. NACOG and the City have in the past made arrangements regarding the use of 
property owned by the other which have provided benefits to the community.  The Parties 
desire, at this time, to address several of those arrangements with one intergovernmental 
agreement. 
 
B. As governmental entities recognized under the laws of the State of Arizona, each party 
has the appropriate authority to enter this Intergovernmental Agreement. 
 
C. The City owns certain real property, described below, and is authorized by its Charter 
to use such property for public purposes and benefits such as providing services to children.   
 
D. NACOG desires to use certain properties owned by the City to continue to provide 
services to children in the community through the Head Start programs which NACOG offers.  
 
E. NACOG’s continued provision of Head Start programs is a benefit to the City and the 
citizens of the City of Flagstaff 
 
F. It is in the best interests of the citizens of Flagstaff for the City and NACOG to enter 
into this Intergovernmental Agreement which will continue to facilitate early childhood 
education services to children in the community via Head Start. 
 
G. The Parties wish to set forth their agreement regarding the use of certain properties 
and the maintenance of those certain properties in the terms and conditions contained in this 
Intergovernmental Agreement.   
 
 



2 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained 
herein, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. PROPERTIES 
 

A. Cogdill.  Under the terms of this Intergovernmental Agreement between the City and 
NACOG, the City hereby authorizes use of that certain real property owned by the 
City located at 301 South Paseo Del Flag, Flagstaff, commonly known as the Cogdill 
property, to NACOG for the continuation of the Head Start programs offered by 
NACOG at the Cogdill property.   

 
B. Clark Homes.  Under the terms of this Intergovernmental Agreement between the City 

and NACOG, the City hereby authorizes use of that certain real property owned by the 
City located at 1000 North Clark Circle, Flagstaff, commonly known as the Clark 
Homes property, to NACOG for the continuation of the Head Start programs offered 
by NACOG at the Clark Homes property. 

 
C. Ponderosa.  Under the terms of this Intergovernmental Agreement between the City 

and NACOG, the City hereby authorizes use of that certain real property owned by the 
City located 2500 North First Street, Flagstaff, commonly known as the Ponderosa 
property, to NACOG for the continuation of the Head Start programs offered by 
NACOG at the Ponderosa property. 

 
D. Sunnyside.  Under the terms of this Intergovernmental Agreement between the City 

and NACOG, the City hereby authorizes use of that certain real property owned by the 
City located at 1825 North Main Street, Flagstaff, commonly known as the Sunnyside 
property, to NACOG for the continuation of the Head Start programs offered by 
NACOG at the Sunnyside property. 
 

E. Siler Homes.  Under the terms of this Intergovernmental Agreement between the City 
and NACOG, the City hereby authorizes use of that certain real property owned by the 
City located at 3581 North Fanning Drive, commonly known as the Siler Homes 
property to NACOG for the continuation of the Head Start programs offered by 
NACOG at the Siler Homes property. 

 
2. USE OF THE PROPERTIES 
 
2.1 Description of Space Utilized by NACOG.  During the term of this Intergovernmental 
Agreement, NACOG may use the City properties referenced in this Intergovernmental 
Agreement for providing services, including recreational services to children in the 
community within the parameters of the Head Start program administered by NACOG.   As 
the amount of space varies from property to property, a description of the space used for each 
respective property is as follows: 

 
A. Cogdill: 

1. Indoor space comprising 1,929 square feet which includes: 



3 

i. Two classrooms; 
ii. One office; 

iii. Part-time staff work space (one room); 
iv. Exclusive use of the restrooms in the classrooms and scheduled 

exclusive use of restrooms in the hallway; 
v. One storage closet adjacent to gym area; 

vi. Two classroom bathrooms and two adult bathrooms in the 
hallway area (shared with City personnel); 

vii. Kitchen and adjacent pantry areas; 
2. Occasional use of large gym area for indoor play during cold weather. 

(Conditions of used scheduled with Boys & Girls Club). 
3. Occasional use of Computer room.  (Conditions of used scheduled with 

Boys & Girls Club). 
4. Outdoor space comprising 2,500 square feet which includes: 

i. Shared outdoor playground space which shall be used 
exclusively by NACOG Head Start during the Head Start hours 
of operation; 

ii. Age appropriate playground equipment and supplies purchased, 
installed & maintained by NACOG Head Start for the portion of 
the playground designed for children ages 2-5; 

5. Reasonably sufficient space for parking for the NACOG Head Start 
staff, parents and community volunteers; 

6. Reasonably sufficient space for parking for the NACOG Head Start 
staff, parents and community volunteers. 
 

B. Clark Homes:  
1. Reasonably sufficient space on the land for placement of the two 

classroom modular units comprising 2,160 square feet; 
2. Reasonably sufficient space on the land (2,426 square feet) for 

placement of playground and playground equipment, supplied and 
maintained by NACOG, in a manner compliant with Head Start 
outdoor play requirements and standards; 

3. Reasonably sufficient space on the land for the placement of three (3) 
storage sheds behind the classroom space; 

4. Reasonably sufficient space for parking for the NACOG Head Start 
staff, parents and community volunteers; 

5. Reasonably sufficient parking to accommodate child Drop-off and 
Pick-up times. 
 

C. Ponderosa:  
1. Indoor space in the former City recreation building comprising 3,252 

square feet which includes: 
i. Two classrooms; 

ii. Kitchen; 
iii. Two bathrooms; 
iv. Three offices; 



4 

v. One storage room. 
2. Outdoor space comprising 7,720 square feet which includes: 

i. Reasonably sufficient space on the land for placement of one 
classroom modular unit 36’ X 60’ (2,160  square feet); 

ii. Reasonably sufficient space on the land (5,560 square feet) for 
placement of playground and playground equipment, supplied 
and maintained by NACOG, in a manner compliant with Head 
Start outdoor play requirements and standards; 

3. Reasonably sufficient space for parking for the NACOG Head Start 
staff, parents and community volunteers; 

4. Reasonably sufficient parking to accommodate child Drop-off and 
Pick-up times. 
 

D. Sunnyside:  
1. Indoor space comprising 4,100  square feet which includes: 

i. One classroom; 
ii. One training room 

iii. Three offices; 
iv. One kitchen; 
v. Four bathrooms; 

2. Outdoor space comprising 1,922  square feet which includes: 
i. Reasonably sufficient space on the land for placement of 

playground and playground equipment, supplied and maintained 
by NACOG, in a manner compliant with Head Start outdoor 
play requirements and standards; 

3. Reasonably sufficient space for parking for the NACOG Head Start 
staff, parents and community volunteers; 

4. Reasonably sufficient parking to accommodate child Drop-off and 
Pick-up times. 
 

E. Siler Homes: 
1. Indoor space comprising 4,069  square feet which includes: 

i. Two classrooms; 
ii. Three offices; 

iii. Kitchen; 
iv. Three bathrooms; 

2. Outdoor space comprising 7,127  square feet which includes: 
i. Reasonably sufficient space on the land for placement of 

playground and playground equipment, supplied and maintained 
by NACOG, in a manner compliant with Head Start outdoor 
play requirements and standards; 

3. Reasonably sufficient space for parking for the NACOG Head Start 
staff, parents and community volunteers; 

4. Reasonably sufficient parking to accommodate child Drop-off and 
Pick-up times. 

 



5 

2.2 Term.  The use of each individual City property under this Intergovernmental 
Agreement shall be for a term of one (1) year; however, such term shall automatically renew 
each year upon the date of expiration of this Intergovernmental Agreement until either party 
gives a sixty (60) day written notice of intent to terminate this Intergovernmental Agreement 
which states, for the other party, the specific City property for which the Intergovernmental 
Agreement shall be terminated. 
 
2.3 Maintenance and Repairs.  
  

A. Cogdill:  NACOG shall be responsible to perform (or cause to be performed) all 
routine maintenance to the classrooms, kitchen and kitchen equipment on the City 
property including but not limited to trash and debris removal which shall be 
performed in all respects in accordance with applicable health and safety laws and 
rules.  Both Parties shall be responsible for routine maintenance and upkeep of the 
playground space.  The City shall be responsible for the maintenance of the 
heating/cooling, plumbing and all other facility issues.    
 

B.  Clark Homes:   NACOG shall be responsible to perform (or cause to be performed) all 
routine maintenance (interior and exterior) on the City property including but not 
limited to trash, debris and snow removal which shall be performed in all respects in 
accordance with applicable health and safety laws and rules.  NACOG shall be 
responsible for repairs of paved surfaces primarily used by Head Start for parking and 
other user activities on the City property. 

  
C. Ponderosa:  NACOG shall be responsible to perform (or cause to be performed) all 

routine maintenance (interior and exterior) of the City property including but not 
limited to trash, debris and snow removal which shall be performed in all respects in 
accordance with applicable health and safety laws and rules.  NACOG shall be 
responsible for repairs of paved surfaces primarily used by Head Start for parking and 
other user activities on the City property.  

 
D. Sunnyside:  NACOG shall be responsible to perform (or cause to be performed) all 

routine maintenance (interior and exterior) of the City property including but not 
limited to trash, debris and snow removal which shall be performed in all respects in 
accordance with applicable health and safety laws and rules.  NACOG shall be 
responsible for repairs of paved surfaces primarily used by Head Start for parking and 
other user activities on the City property.  
 

E. Siler Homes:  NACOG shall be responsible to perform (or cause to be performed) all 
routine maintenance (interior and exterior) of the City Property including but not 
limited to trash, debris and snow removal which shall be performed in all respects in 
accordance with applicable health and safety laws and rules.  NACOG shall be 
responsible for repairs of paved surfaces primarily used by Head Start for parking and 
other user activities on the City property.   

 



6 

2.4 Utilities.  Utilities shall be paid with respect to each of the parcels of real property as 
follows: 
 

A. Cogdill:  NACOG shall be responsible for the Internet/Phone Services.  The City shall 
be responsible for Electric, Gas, Water, Trash/Sanitation & Sewer Services.   

  
B.  Clark Homes:   NACOG shall be responsible all utilities.  

 
C. Ponderosa:  NACOG shall be responsible all utilities.   

 
D. Sunnyside:  NACOG shall be responsible all utilities.  

 
E. Siler Homes:  NACOG shall be responsible for the Internet/Phone and 

Trash/Sanitation Services.  The City shall be responsible for Electric, Gas, Water & 
Sewer Services. 
 
 

2.5 Periods of Use.  NACOG shall only have the exclusive right and privilege to use the 
City properties during the time NACOG Head Start is in session, typically the ten (10) months 
from August – May. 
 
3. INSURANCE 
 
NACOG shall procure and maintain throughout the term of the Intergovernmental Agreement, 
and any extension or renewal hereof, commercial general liability insurance with a combined 
single limit of liability coverage not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000 per 
occurrence; $3,000,000 aggregate).  
 
4. AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, AND CONTRACTORS 
 
4.1 Agents, employees and contractors hired by a Party to provide services under this 
Intergovernmental Agreement shall be and remain the agents, employees, and contractors of 
the hiring Party solely, and shall not be considered agents, employees, or contractors of the 
other Party. 
 
4.2 NACOG agrees to perform background checks on every agent and employee hired by 
NACOG to render any services, or perform any duties on any and all five parcels referred to 
in this Intergovernmental Agreement. 
 
5. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
5.1 The City agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless NACOG from and against 
any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “Claims”) arising out of bodily injury of any person 
(including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that such Claims that result in 
vicarious/derivative liability to NACOG are caused by the act, omission, negligence, 



7 

misconduct or other fault of the City, its officers, officials, agents, employees, invitees or  
volunteers. 
 
5.2 NACOG agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City from and against 
any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “Claims”) arising out of bodily injury of any person 
(including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that such Claims that result in 
vicarious/derivative liability to the City are caused by the act, omission, negligence, 
misconduct or other fault of NACOG, its officers, officials, agents, employees, invitees or 
volunteers.  
 
6. AMENDMENTS 
 
This Intergovernmental Agreement may be modified only by written agreement signed by 
authorized representatives of both Parties.   
 
7. NO ASSIGNMENT; BINDING EFFECT 
 
This Agreement is not assignable by either party.  Any attempt to do so shall render the 
assignment null and void and the Agreement may be terminated immediately by the non-
assigning party. 
 
8. SEVERABILITY 
 
In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction shall hold any part of provision of this 
Intergovernmental Agreement void or of no effect, the remaining provisions of this 
Intergovernmental Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, to the extent that the 
continued enforcement of such remaining terms shall continue to reflect substantially the 
intent of the parties hereto. 
 
9. WAIVER 
 
No failure to enforce any condition or covenant of this Intergovernmental Agreement shall 
imply or constitute a waiver of the right to insist upon performance of such condition or 
covenant, of or any other provision hereof, nor shall any waiver by either Party of any breach 
of any one or more conditions or covenants of this Intergovernmental Agreement constitute a 
waiver of any succeeding or other breach hereunder. 
 
10. MERGER 
 
Each Party acknowledges and agrees that it has not relied upon any statements, 
representations, agreements or warranties, except as expressed herein, and that this 
Intergovernmental Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to 
the matters addressed herein.  All prior and contemporaneous agreements, representations, 
and understandings, whether oral or written, are superseded by and merged in this 
Intergovernmental Agreement. 



8 

 
11. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
This Intergovernmental Agreement is subject to the provisions of A.R.S. §38-511, which 
permits either Party within three years after the execution of this Intergovernmental 
Agreement, to cancel this Intergovernmental Agreement, without penalty or further 
obligation, if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or 
creating this Intergovernmental Agreement on behalf of the Party, is, at any time while the 
Intergovernmental Agreement or any extension of the Intergovernmental Agreement is in 
effect, an employee or agent of the other Party in any capacity or a consultant to the other 
Party with respect to the subject matter of the Intergovernmental Agreement. 
 
12. GOVERNING LAW 
 
12.1 This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of Arizona and shall 
incorporate by reference all laws governing intergovernmental agreements and mandatory 
contract provisions of state agencies required by statute or executive order. 
 
12.2 All statutes and regulations referenced in this Agreement are incorporated herein as if 
fully stated in their entirety in the Agreement.  Each Party agrees to comply with and be 
responsible for the provisions, the statutes, and the regulations set out in this Agreement.  
 
13. LEGAL WORKERS 
 
As mandated by Arizona Revised Statutes § 41-4401, each party (a) warrants the party’s 
compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to the party’s 
employees and their compliance with Arizona Revised Statutes § 23-214(A); (b) 
acknowledges that a breach of the warranty in subsection (a) of this section shall be deemed a 
material breach of this Agreement that is subject to penalties up to and including termination 
of this Agreement; and (c) retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any contractor or 
subcontractor employee who works pursuant to this Agreement to ensure compliance with the 
warranty. 
 
14. CONSTRUCTION 
 
This Agreement shall be construed as a whole and in accordance with its fair meaning.  This 
Agreement shall not be construed for or against either Party.  Headings are for convenience 
only and shall not affect the meaning or construction of any provision of this Agreement. 
 
15.  IN-KIND CONTRIBUTION OF CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
 
In exchange for the use of the City’s property, NACOG shall continue to provide services to 
children through Head Start programs.  NACOG shall claim the current assessed fair market 
value of each space identified in section 2.1 annually as an In-kind space donation to be 
recorded under the non-federal share of the Head Start grant award for the period of June 1 to 
May 31 of each year the Intergovernmental Agreement is in place, which shall be increased 



9 

annually by three percent (3%) or the Federal rate of inflation, whichever is greater for each 
subsequent year the Intergovernmental Agreement is in place, which shall be considered the 
Fair Market Value of the space as outlined in Title 45CFR Part 92.24, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State, Local and 
Tribal Governments. 
 
16.  SUPERSEDING AGREEMENT  
 
This Intergovernmental Agreement supersedes any and all previous agreements between the 
parties as related to the properties referenced herein.  In the event of disputes involving the 
arrangements between the Parties with respect to the properties referenced herein, the terms of 
this Intergovernmental Agreement shall control. 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year 
first written above. 
 
 
City of Flagstaff, City  Northern Arizona Council of 

Governments, NACOG 
   

Gerald W. Nabours, Mayor  Chris Fetzer, Executive Director 
 
 
 

  

Attest:  Attest: 
   

City Clerk   
   

Approved as to form:  Approved as to form: 
   

 



  10. G.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Stephanie Smith, Executive Assistant to City
Manager

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting
Date:

09/17/2013

TITLE
City Manager Excellence Awards.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Discussion only

INFORMATION
The City Manager will announce the employee and employee team recipients of the 2012-2013 City
Manager Excellence Awards. These awards are the City's annual awards to recognize outstanding
employees for their contributions to the organization and the community. These awards are built around
the 5 values of our organization – Teamwork, Accountability, Communication, Quality and Leadership. 
The award ceremony will be followed by a reception in the lobby. 

Attachments: 



  14. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Walt Miller, Deputy Chief

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration of Ordinance No. 2013-20: An Ordinance adopting the prohibition of intentionally,
knowingly or recklessly feeding wildlife.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Move to read Ordinance 2013-20 for the final time by title only
2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2013-20 by title only (if approved above)
3) Adopt Ordinance No. 2013-20

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
The Flagstaff Police Department, in collaboration with the Arizona Game and Fish Department, is
requesting the approval of Ordinance 2013-20, which would prohibit the feeding of wildlife, with exception
to birds and squirrels.

Financial Impact:
There is no financial impact to the City of Flagstaff by adopting this ordinance.

Connection to Council Goal:
Effective governance by responding to community concerns.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Yes, there has been prior discussion of a proposed ordinance. During the Council work session on
May14, 2013, Larry Phoenix with the Arizona Game and Fish Department presented Council with the
Power Point presentation, “Wildlife Anti-Feeding Ordinance.”  At the conclusion of the presentation, staff
was directed by Council to move forward with review of an ordinance. Additionally, at the August 26,
2013, meeting the City Council held discussion and received public input, and ultimately amended the
ordinance and held first reading.

Options and Alternatives:
1) Adopt Ordinance 2013-20 making it unlawful to intentionally, knowingly or recklessly feed wildlife
2) Do not adopt Ordinance 2013-20
3) Amend the ordinance with consideration of the options listed under Expanded Options and
Alternatives in this communication.
  



Background/History:
In the past several years the Arizona Game and Fish Department has received several complaints from
citizens in Flagstaff regarding the intentional feeding of wildlife, specifically deer and elk. Intentional
feeding attracts wildlife to a specific area and over a very short course of time they become habituated to
humans and become a nuisance. It has also been reported they damage the property of homeowners.
Once attracted and habituated to humans, they pose a public safety concern as wildlife become
dependent on humans for food, less wary of humans and may become dangerous, unpredictable and
aggressive. Feeding will also create unnatural crowding and can attract predators such as coyotes, lions,
bobcats and bears. One person feeding could potentially cause problems for themselves and
surrounding neighbors by drawing predators into the area. There are also concerns that the food source
that is being used can actually harm wildlife as it is usually not formulated for consumption by wildlife and
can especially harm young animals. Feeding will also concentrate wildlife and increase animal to animal
contact further spreading disease such as eye and respiratory infections and in many cases rabies.   
 
The City of Flagstaff and the Flagstaff Police Department have worked in collaboration with the Arizona
Game and Fish Department on drafting this ordinance in an effort to address public concerns, public
safety and the welfare and safety of wildlife.

Key Considerations:
It is hoped that by adopting Ordinance 2013-20 it will regulate the intentional feeding of wildlife by taking
a proactive approach to feeding issues that are a concern to the citizens of Flagstaff and the Arizona
Game and Fish Department at both the state and regional level. This ordinance will help address public
safety and nuisance wildlife issues associated with feeding activities. Any peace officer in the state may
enforce revised statutes and many city ordinances. It is intended that an officer with the Arizona Game &
Fish Department can enforce this ordinance as the Flagstaff Municipal Court will accept citations issued
by a state certified law enforcement officer . 
 
Arizona Revised Statute Sec. 13-2927 does prohibit the feeding of wildlife; however it only applies in
counties with a population of more than two hundred eighty thousand (280,000) persons. (Coconino
County’s population is 134,511 as per the 2011 census.) Therefore, there are no state statutes or county
ordinances that prohibit the feeding of wildlife.  The Flagstaff Police Department has been in
communication with the Coconino County Sheriff’s Department and they have had recent discussions
with County administration about adopting an ordinance as well. The Arizona Game and Fish
Department has approached the Coconino County Board of Supervisors on three separate occasions,
but for reasons unknown, the ordinance has not gained any traction.   
 
Within the State, several other counties and municipalities, including Navajo, Cochise, and Gila Counties,
as well as the cities of Pinetop-Lakeside and Showlow, have adapted wildlife feeding ordinances.
However, they are specific to the issues regarding bears, coyotes, javelinas, and mountain lions. In
2012, the City of Scottsdale enacted an ordinance prohibiting the feeding of wildlife that is specific to their
city parks only and does not encompass other properties, public or private within the city limits.   

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The Flagstaff Police Department and the Arizona Game and Fish Department believe that increased
education is the key element of this ordinance. It will also deter individuals from feeding wildlife in areas
that are impacted by wildlife. The ordinance will be enforced based only on complaints generated by the
public.  



Community Involvement:
The Flagstaff Police Department and the Arizona Game and Fish Department believe that increased
education is the key element of this ordinance. It will also deter individuals from feeding wildlife in areas
that are impacted by wildlife. Once again, the ordinance will be enforced based only on complaints
generated by the public.  
 
The proposed ordinance and staff summary will be posted in accordance with law, and interested
persons are invited to comment at the City Council meetings at which the ordinance will be under
consideration.
 
A public outreach meeting was held on July 22, 2013, at the Flagstaff Police Department and a second
public outreach meeting was held on August 12, 2013, at the Arizona Game and Fish Department. The
meetings were advertised in the Arizona Daily Sun, The City of Flagstaff web page, the Flagstaff Police
Department Facebook page and Twitter.   
 
On July 22, 2013, the first of two public meetings was held. A Power Point presentation was given by
Game and Fish Officer Larry Phoenix, and Assistant City Attorney Marianne Sullivan was present to
answer legal questions. There were twenty (20) people in attendance with a group of five (5) people who
are opposed to the ordinance. Some that are opposed to the ordinance voiced concerns that the City
does not need any more ordinances, while at least one individual voiced concerns that the ordinance was
specific to the homeowners of Continental Country Club. One individual felt that the feeding of deer
and/or elk was not the reason for attracting wildlife, but instead the availability of water in the area. At the
conclusion of the meeting the question of whether or not the proposed ordinance could be put to a vote
by City residents, rather than decided by the City Council was raised.  Four (4) people in attendance
voiced support for the ordinance with the remaining eleven (11) not voicing support or opposition.  
 
On August 12, 2013, the second public meeting was held at the Arizona Game and Fish Department.
Game and Fish Officer Larry Phoenix gave a Power Point presentation and Assistant City Attorney
Marianne Sullivan was again present to answer legal questions. There were twelve (12) people in
attendance; seven (7) in attendance were present at the last meeting. Out of the twelve (12) citizens in
attendance only two (2) voiced opposition to the ordinance. Four (4) in attendance voiced support, with
the remaining six (6) not voicing support or opposition.
 
Much of the opposition revolved around the information provided by Larry Phoenix. He was continually
challenged over the habituation of wildlife to humans, the attraction of wildlife due to intentional feeding
and the concentration of wildlife to a specific area, which increases animal to animal contact further
spreading disease such as eye and respiratory infections and in many cases rabies. One citizen in
opposition stated, “Feeding wildlife is a distraction, habituation to humans is not an issue nor is the
concentration of wildlife.” This citizen believes that there is no harm in the intentional feeding of wildlife.
He adamantly refutes any negative impacts feeding has on wildlife and also refutes any dangers wildlife
may pose to humans.   
 
Those that voiced support, all of whom live in Continental Country Club, felt that the City in collaboration
with the Arizona Game and Fish Department has a responsibility to not only protect the citizens but also
to protect wildlife. One citizen stated, “As a community member who lives in the Country Club area I
support the ordinance. The entire City has a responsibility to assist with wildlife issues.” This citizen
further stated that she would support anything that would “keep wildlife wild. I appreciate the ordinance.”
Another citizen also stated she lives in the Country Club area and said that her neighbors were feeding
deer. What began with six deer has now turned into thirty and the neighbors have since moved. The deer
have now become a nuisance on her property.  
 
At the conclusion of the meeting, Marianne Sullivan responded to the question of whether or not the
Council had the option of sending the ordinance out to the public for a vote. She advised that the Council
did not have that option, and if the ordinance were to be placed on a ballot, there would need to be a
referendum sponsored by a citizen or citizen group. In response, one citizen stated that if the ordinance



referendum sponsored by a citizen or citizen group. In response, one citizen stated that if the ordinance
passed, he would sponsor a referendum to repeal it.

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
Options within the ordinance include all three culpable mental states of intentionally knowingly or
recklessly which are defined as follows in A.R.S. Section 13-105 (10) 

“Intentionally” or “with the intent to” means, with respect to a result or to conduct described by a
statute defining an offense, that a person's objective is to cause that result or to engage in that
conduct.
“Knowingly” means, with respect to conduct or to a circumstance described by a statute defining an
offense, that a person is aware or believes that the person's conduct is of that nature or that the
circumstance exists. It does not require any knowledge of the unlawfulness of the act or omission.
“Recklessly” means, with respect to a result or to a circumstance described by a statute defining an
offense, that a person is aware of and consciously disregards a substantial and unjustifiable risk
that the result will occur or that the circumstance exists. The risk must be of such nature and degree
that disregard of such risk constitutes a gross deviation from the standard of conduct that a
reasonable person would observe in the situation. A person who creates such a risk but who is
unaware of such risk solely by reason of voluntary intoxication also acts recklessly with respect to
such risk.

Possible penalties include the following:

A) Petty Offense maximum is three hundred dollars ($300.00)
B) Class 3 misdemeanor maximum is five hundred dollars ($500.00) and thirty (30) days in jail
C) Class 2 misdemeanor maximum is seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00) and four (4) months in jail
D) Class 1 misdemeanor maximum is two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) and six (6) months
in jail

Changes requested by Council at First Read were made to the Ordinance including options regarding
section 5 of the Exceptions section.

However, for Council's information, some additional changes were made regarding the penalty section.
Specifically, the following language was added: "plus any other penalties, assessments or surcharges
authorized by law." This language is standard language that is recommended to ensure any required
court fines and fees may also be assessed by the court upon a conviction under this section. In addition,
language spelling out the parameters of the class 3 misdemeanor fines and punishments was removed in
the event the State law changes the penalties regarding misdemeanor offenses.  With this change, the
ordinance would not have to be revised at a later date or multiple times.
  

Attachments:  Wildlife Feeding Ord.
Ord. 2013-20
PowerPoint Presentation







































ORDINANCE NO. 2013-20 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 6, POLICE REGULATIONS, 
CHAPTER 6-01, GENERAL OFFENSES, BY ADDING SECTION 6-01-
001-0023 PROHIBITING THE FEEDING OF WILDLIFE WITHIN 
FLAGSTAFF CITY LIMITS; PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES, REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, SEVERABILITY, AUTHORITY FOR 
CLERICAL CORRECTIONS, AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 
 

 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, feeding wildlife may attract uncontrollable numbers of animals which may 
result in damage to property and irritation to surrounding property owners; and 
 
WHEREAS, uneaten food may attract rodents, insects and other pests, thereby 
increasing the potential for transmittal of disease to other animals and humans; and 
 
WHEREAS, providing wildlife with an artificial supply of food may lead to the production 
of animal families larger than the natural food supply can support; and 
 
WHEREAS, feeding wildlife may cause wildlife to lose their natural fear of humans, 
thereby increasing the risk of injury from wild animals.  
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
FLAGSTAFF AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. In General 
 
The Flagstaff City Code, Title 6, Chapter 6-01, General Offenses is hereby amended by 
adding the following section: 
 
SECTION 6-01-001-0023 OUTDOOR FEEDING AND PROTECTION OF WILDLIFE 
 
A. Definitions. In this Section unless the Context otherwise requires: 

 
1. "Feeding" or "to feed" means placing edible material in a location where it 

can be consumed by wildlife. 
 
2. "Attracting" or "to attract" means placing edible material in a location likely 

to entice wildlife to the source of the edible material. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-20  PAGE 2 
 
 

3. "Edible material" means any human or animal food, food by-product, salt 
organic material, refuse, garbage or water. 

 
4. "Wildlife" means all wild mammals and/or wild birds. 
 
5. “Public employees” means any federal, state, county or city employees.   

 
B. Feeding or attracting wildlife prohibited 

 
 It is unlawful for any person to intentionally, knowingly or recklessly feed wildlife 

or to attract wildlife. 
 
C. Applicability 

 
This section applies to all areas within the Flagstaff city limits. 

 
D. Exceptions 

 
This section does not apply to: 
 
1. Public employees, or their authorized agents, acting pursuant to A.R.S. 

Title 17 or Game and Fish Commission rule or order or acting, within the 
scope of their authority for public safety or wildlife management purposes. 

 
2. Edible material located in a residence, closed vehicle, fully enclosed 

storage structure, or in a closed trash container. 
 
3. A person feeding their own horses or domestic animals. 
 
4. Seeds, nectar, and other material for birds or squirrels placed specifically 

for attracting wild birds and/or tree squirrels in a closed top container 
placed at least four (4) feet above the ground.   

 
5. OPTION (1) 
 
 Growing plants or parts of growing plants, including parts of the growing 

plants that have dropped directly from those plants. 
 
 OPTION (2) 
 
 Growing plants or parts of growing plants, including gardens and fruit 

bearing trees or plants and the parts of those plants that may have fallen 
to the ground from those plants. 

 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-20  PAGE 3 
 
 

 OPTION (3) 
 
 Strike entire section 
 

6.  Compost piles that are fully contained and made inaccessible to wildlife. 
 
E. Limitations to Exceptions 
 
 The exceptions do not apply to any person who knows or has reason to know 

that an activity is attracting wildlife other than birds or tree squirrels. To avoid a 
violation, a person shall modify placement of any edible material, immediately 
cease the activity, or take such actions as the situation may require. 

 
F. Enforcement 
 
 An Arizona Game and Fish officer, animal control officer or any state certified 

peace officer may issue a written warning or citation for the violation of this 
section. 

 
G. Separate Offenses 
 
 Each violation pursuant to this section shall constitute a separate offense and 

each day a violation remains unabated may constitute a separate offense. 
 
H. Penalties 
 

1. Upon a first violation of this section, an officer shall issue a written warning 
and provide the person with wildlife educational materials. 

 
2. If there is a violation of this section within ninety (90) days from the date a 

warning was issued, the new violation is a petty offense punishable by a 
fine not to exceed one hundred and fifty dollars (150.00), plus any other 
penalties assessments or surcharges authorized by law. 

 
3. If there is a violation of this section and the person has previously been 

convicted within ninety (90) days of violating this section it is a petty 
offense punishable by a fine not less than one hundred and fifty dollars 
($150.00) and not more than three hundred dollars ($300.00) ), plus any 
other penalties assessments or surcharges authorized by law. 

 
4. If there is a violation of this section and the person has previously been 

convicted two or more times within one hundred and eighty (180) days of 
violating this section, it is a class three misdemeanor, plus any other 
penalties assessments or surcharges authorized by law. 

 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-20  PAGE 4 
 
 
SECTION 2. Severability. 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance or any 
part of the code adopted herein by reference is  for any reason held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent decision, such decision shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 
 
SECTION 3. Clerical Corrections. 
 
The City Clerk is hereby authorized to correct typographical and grammatical errors, as 
well as errors of wording and punctuation, as necessary, related to this ordinance as 
amended herein, and to make formatting changes needed for purposes of clarity and 
form or consistency within thirty (30) days following adoption by the City Council. 
 
SECTION 4. Effective Date. 
 
This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days following adoption by the City 
Council. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council and approved by the Mayor of the City of 
Flagstaff this 17th of September, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
               
        MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
CITY ATTORNEY 

 
 



Outdoor Feeding and Protection of 

Wildlife Ordinance 

Presented by:  

Arizona Game and Fish Department 

Flagstaff Police Department 



Outdoor Feeding and Protection of 

Wildlife Ordinance 

•  What we will cover: 

• Public outreach 

• Why an ordinance? 

• Proposed Outdoor Feeding and Protection of 

Wildlife Ordinance (2013-20) 

• Questions? 

 



Outdoor Feeding and Protection of 

Wildlife Ordinance 

• The Game and Fish Dept. 

• Flagstaff Police Dept. 

• City of Flagstaff  

 

• Proactive approach to address:  

• Public concerns 

• Public safety 

• Welfare and safety of wildlife 

 

 



Public Outreach 

• Held two public outreach meetings  

• Monday, July 22, 2013 

• Monday, August 12, 2013 

• Arizona Daily Sun (Article after each meeting) 

• City of Flagstaff web page 

• Flagstaff Police Department Facebook page and 

Twitter 



Why an Ordinance? 

• Arizona Game and Fish Dept. are responsible for the 

management of the wildlife within the state 

• Keep “Wildlife Wild” 

• Intentional or Unintentional feeding causes changes in the natural 

behavior of wildlife 

• Habituated to humans 

• Dependent on humans 

• Less wary and lose their natural fear of humans 

• Become dangerous 

• Unpredictable 

• Aggressive 

 



Why an Ordinance? 

• Feeding  

• Creates unnatural crowding 

• Often attracts predators 

• Feeding wildlife exposes them to 

• Harassment and/or attacks from our pets 

• The pets usually loose! 

• In all cases both people and the wildlife are effected 

 

 



Why an Ordinance? 

• Food being fed to wildlife is usually not formulated for 

consumption by wildlife – alfalfa 

• Wildlife need to depend on THEIR own ability to find and utilize 

natural foods 

• Wildlife that are fed become a nuisances and may have to be 

removed from area and killed 

 

A fed ______ is a dead _______! 

 



Disease Problems 

• Feeding will artificially concentrate wildlife 

• Increases animal to animal contact 

• Further spreading disease and parasites 



What are your neighbors doing? 

• One person feeding usually creates problems for the 

surrounding neighbors. 

• Wildlife do not understand fence lines or property boundaries. 



Other Ordinances/Laws 

• Navajo County – Ordinance w/in the unincorporated portions of 

the county 

• Cochise County – Ordinance w/in the unincorporated portions of 

the county 

• Gila County – Ordinance w/in the unincorporated portions of the 

county 

• Pinetop/Lakeside – City Ordinance 

• Show Low – City Ordinance  

• Scottsdale City – Ordinance related to City Parks 

• Maricopa, Pima, & Pinal Counties – State law: ARS 13-2927  

280,000 population 



The Ordinance 

• This is that next step to proactive management of wildlife  

 

• The ordinance will regulate the intentional feeding of wildlife in 

an effort to protect the welfare and safety of the public and the 

wildlife 

 

• Unlawful for any person to knowingly (intentionally, recklessly) 

feed or attract wildlife 

 

• Within Flagstaff city limits 

 

 



The Ordinance 

There are several exceptions within the ordinance which 

includes: 

• Seeds, nectar and other material for birds and 

squirrels placed specifically for attracting wild birds 

and/or tree squirrels in a closed top container placed 

at least 4 feet above the ground 

 

• Edible materials located in a residence, closed 

vehicle, fully enclosed storage structure, or in a 

closed trash container 

 

• A person feeding their own horses or domestic 

animals 

 



The Ordinance 

Exceptions con’t: 

 

• Growing plants or parts of growing plants if attempts are made to 

frequently remove attractants such as dropped or ripened fruits, 

vegetables, grains of nuts 

 

• Compost piles that are fully contained and made inaccessible to 

wildlife 

 

• Public authorities doing regular duties 

 



The Ordinance 

• The exceptions do not apply to any person who knows or has 

reason to know that an activity is attracting wildlife other than 

birds or tree squirrels.  

 

• To avoid a violation, a person shall modify placement of any 

edible material, immediately cease the activity, or take such 

actions as the situation may require. 

 

• The ordinance addresses blatant feeding 

of wildlife except birds and tree 

squirrels.  
 



Enforcement Actions  

• There have been four people cited in Arizona for feeding wildlife 

after all other measures were taken to convince them to stop  

 

• Two people cited in Pima County  

• The first was a woman that was feeding bears (Before the 

 statewide no feeding law)  

• The second was a woman that was feeding Ravens dog food 

• Two people cited in Maricopa County for feeding javelina 

• One person was cited for feeding javelina dog food. Nine 

javelina had to be euthanized because they became habituated 

and aggressive.  

• One person was cited for feeding javelina restaurant scraps 

• A third person is under investigation for feeding javelina 



Enforcement Actions 

• This ordinance will be enforced based on complaints generated 

from the public 

• Officers will not be out patrolling neighborhoods  

• There must be contact by an officer 

• Game and Fish personnel regularly contact people who are 

feeding wildlife. In most situations the individuals don’t realize 

the real problem and stop after hearing that feeding wildlife is not 

the right thing to do. 

 

 



Enforcement Actions 

• First violation: An officer will issue a written warning and 

provide wildlife educational materials. There will be a discussion 

regarding the type of feeding the person is doing including 

recommendations. The person will receive a follow-up letter from 

the Game and Fish Dept. outlining the situation.   

 

 



Enforcement Actions 

• Second violation w/in 60 days: The new violation is a petty 

offense punishable by a fine not to exceed $150.00.  

 

 



Enforcement Actions 

• Third violation where the person was previously convicted w/in 

90 days: The new violation is a petty offense punishable by a fine 

not less than $150.00 and not more than $300.00.  

 

 



Enforcement Actions 

• Fourth violation where the person was convicted two of more 

times w/in 180 days: The new violation is a class 3 misdemeanor 

punishable by a fine not more than $750.00 and 30 days in jail.  

 

 



Questions? 



  14. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Neil Gullickson, Planning Development Manager

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Preliminary Plat: True Life Communities PS AZ for The Estates at
Pine Canyon, Unit 5 subdivision, a forty-seven lot, single-family, detached residential subdivision. The
site is 29.946 acres in size and is located at 3851 South Clubhouse Circle in the Pine Canyon
Development.  The site is zoned R1, Single-Family Residential Zone. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approving the Preliminary Plat.

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
The Planning and Zoning Commission shall base a recommendation, and the City Council shall find the
proposed Preliminary-Plat meets the requirements of the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code,Title 11, General
Plans and Subdivisions and the City of Flagstaff, Engineering Design and Construction Standards and
Specifications for New Infrastructure.

Financial Impact:
No financial liabilities to the City are anticipated by the approval of this preliminary plat.

Connection to Council Goal:
Retain, expand, and diversify economic base.

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
In June of 2000, the Council approved a rezoning request and development agreement (DA) for the Pine
Canyon development.  Subsequently many plats for Pine Canyon have been approved.  Additionally, the
DA has expired and the City is currently negotiating a new term for the DA and addressing a few
remaining issues.

Options and Alternatives:
1. Approve the plat as recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission.
2. Approve the plat subject to no conditions, additional conditions, or modified conditions.
3. Deny approval of the plat based on non-compliance with the zoning code and/or the Flagstaff
Engineering Design and Construction Standards and Specifications for New Infrastructure.



Background/History:
The applicant, True Life Communities, is requesting preliminary plat approval to permit a forty-seven lot,
single-family, detached residential subdivision on 29.5 acres.  The subdivision is a re-subdivision of tracts
6 and 7 and portions of tracts B, E and F of the Estates at Pine Canyon Unit One.  The lots range in size
from roughly 14,000 sq ft to 33,000 sq ft with the exception of lot 332 which is considerably larger at
70,101 sq ft. A single-family home is expected to be located on each of these lots.  The zoning code will
also allow accessory structures and an accessory dwelling unit on each lot. 
 
The Pine Canyon development is located along the south edge of John Wesley Powell Boulevard (JWP)
and is accessed from Lake Mary Road via JWP and from the north by Lonetree Road.  Pine Canyon
functions as a residential subdivision with country club amenities including golf, swimming and a
clubhouse.  Several different types of residential products are available in the area in addition to
single-family residences, townhomes and twin homes are available.

The subdivision proposes a density of 1.6 units per acre.  The lot standards for the R1 district include
minimum lot size of 6,000 sq ft, 35-foot height limit, 15-foot front building setback, 25-feet to parking,
25-foot rear and 8-foot side setbacks.  All of the proposed lots meet the minimum development
requirements.

Community Involvement:
The existing site zoning allows the proposed subdivision.  No public hearings are required as part of a
subdivision plat review.  No members of the public commented on this plat at the Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting.

Attachments:  P-Plat, Unit 5 at PC
P&Z Report



















PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
PRELIMINARY PLAT REPORT

PUBLIC HEARING DATE: August 14, 2013
PC PPPL 13-003 MEETING DATE: July 30, 2013

REPORT BY: Neil Gullickson

REQUEST:

PC PPPL 13-003, a request for preliminary plat approval by True Life Communities PS AZ for The Estates 
at Pine Canyon, Unit 5 subdivision, a forty-seven lot, single-family, detached residential subdivision.  The 
site is 29.946 acres in size and is located at 3851 South Clubhouse Circle in the Pine Canyon Development.  
The site is zoned R1, Single-Family Residential zone.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the commission forward the preliminary plat to the city council with a 
recommendation for approval.

PRESENT LAND USE:

Undeveloped land.

PROPOSED LAND USE:

Forty-seven single-family residential lots.

NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT:

North: Single-family residential uses, R1 zoning district.
South: Single-family residential uses, R1 zoning district.
East: Undeveloped Coconino National Forest Lands, PLF zoning district
West: Single-family residential uses and golf course, R1 zoning District.

REQUIRED FINDINGS:

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall find the proposed Preliminary-Plat meets the requirements of 
the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code, Title 11, General Plans and Subdivisions and City of Flagstaff 
Engineering Design and Construction Standards and Specifications for New Infrastructure.

STAFF REVIEW:

Introduction/Background:

In 1987, the City of Flagstaff annexed 445 acres of land into the city limits in conjunction with a 752 acre
development known as Fairway Peaks.  The proposed development included 1,433 single-family dwelling 
units, 150 apartments, undefined commercial uses on 10 acres and an 18-hole golf course/clubhouse and 
maintenance facility.  At the same time, the City amended the Growth Management Guide 2000 from Urban 
Reserve to the various land use categories represented today. The property was conditionally rezoned from 
the RR district to several different residential and commercial districts in 1987.  The project proceeded to a 



PC PPPL 2013-003
August 14, 2013
Page 2 of 4

DEV 13-026 PC Unit 5 P-Plat Report.doc

final plat stage in 1989. Final platting was never recorded and the zoning for the proposal lapsed in 
December 1989.

In June of 2000, the council approved a rezoning request and development agreement allowing the 
development of 210 condominiums, 125 affordable manufactured housing units, 242 estate twin house units, 
524 estate homes, 23,550 sq ft of private clubhouse and recreational facilities, 12,000 sq ft in maintenance 
and storage facilities, and 220 acres dedicated for an 18-hole golf course with accessory facilities located on 
roughly 660 acres referred to as “The Estates at Pine Canyon.”

At their meeting of August 14, 2007 the Planning and Zoning commission reviewed and approved a tentative 
plat for the subdivision, the same plat that is being presented today.  

An application for final plat for Unit 5 at Pine Canyon was not forwarded to the council for review and the 
tentative plat approval has lapsed.  This application is a resurrection of the process.

The applicant, True Life Communities, is requesting preliminary plat approval to permit a forty-seven lot, 
single-family, detached residential subdivision on 29.5 acres.  The subdivision is a re-subdivision of tracts 6 
and 7 and portions of tracts B, E and F of the Estates at Pine Canyon Unit One.  The lots range in size from 
roughly 14,000 sq ft to 33,000 sq ft with the exception of lot 332 which is considerably larger at 70,101 sq ft. 
A single-family home is expected to be located on each of these lots. The zoning code will also allow 
accessory structures and an accessory dwelling unit on each lot.  

The Pine Canyon development is located along the south edge of John Wesley Powell Boulevard (JWP) and 
is accessed from Lake Mary Road via JWP and from the north by Lonetree Road.  Pine Canyon functions as 
a residential subdivision with country club amenities including golf, swimming and a clubhouse.  Several 
different types of residential products are available in the area in addition to single-family residences, 
townhomes and twin homes are available. 

The attached location map depicts the location of this subdivision within Pine Canyon Estates.

Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan

The Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan categorizes this portion of Pine Canyon development in the 
L, Low Density Residential category and the remaining balance of the property is designated as Open 
Space/Greenbelt and H, High Density Residential categories.  The proposal of 47 units conforms to the L, 
Low Density Residential, regional land use designation.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

The site is zoned R1single-family and has been applied to the area to support and encourage single-family 
residential development. The development proposes forty-seven home lots.

Single-family homes are exempted by the zoning code from the design review standards and none are 
proposed to be applied by this plat.  However, the home owners association at Pine Canyon does actively 
enforce internal design concepts.



PC PPPL 2013-003
August 14, 2013
Page 3 of 4

DEV 13-026 PC Unit 5 P-Plat Report.doc

Density/Intensity/Development Standards

The subdivision proposes a density of 1.6 units per acre. The lot standards for the R1 district include 
minimum lot size of 6,000 sq ft, 35-foot height limit, 15-foot front building setback, 25-feet to parking, 25-
foot rear and 8-foot side setbacks.  All of the proposed lots can meet the minimum development 
requirements.

Natural Resources

The zoning code’s resource retention requirements are applicable to the parcels located within the resource 
protection overlay zone (RPO).  The site is located within the RPO, and therefore resource protection
requirements have been applied.  In accordance with division 10-50.90, Resource Protection Standards, the 
application meets the slope and forest resource threshold requirements.  No flood plain resources are located 
on the site.  The plat has demonstrated that the disturbance allowances for both steep slope categories as well 
as forest resources have been met.

Open Space

There is no open space (OS) requirement for single-family lots or subdivisions.  In this case, open space has 
been provided on a larger scale through internal trail systems, golf course fairways, connections to national 
forest lands, and large lots with separated building areas

Landscaping

For this subdivision, the zoning code requires that periphery buffers be provided at a plant rate of one tree 
per each 25 linear feet, with two shrubs and two ground cover plants per tree.  A periphery buffer along the 
eastern edge of the subdivision adjacent to national forest land has been provided.  Staff anticipates that the 
landscaping requirement will be met with existing forest resources.  A final landscape plan per division 10-
50.60, page #50.60-1 will be required as part of the public improvement plan submission.  

Lighting

The development is located in lighting zone II, which allows 10,000 lumens per residential lot.   Four
thousand of these lumens can be partially shielded. Lighting compliance will be ensured during the building 
permit review process.

Building Design

Single-family residences are exempt from the city’s building design standards.



PC PPPL 2013-003
August 14, 2013
Page 4 of 4

DEV 13-026 PC Unit 5 P-Plat Report.doc

SYSTEMS ANALYSIS:

Traffic/Access/Pedestrian/Bicycle

A traffic impact analysis was completed as part of the initial approval of Pine Canyon.  No additional traffic 
analyses were required of the development. Bicycle and pedestrian access are available from the site via 
existing internal private road and trail system including FUTS connections.

Water System

A new 8-inch water main will be extended from an existing main located in Clubhouse Circle, eastward in 
Byrd’s View Drive to Moonstone Drive.  The water main will loop to an existing main at the north end of the 
subdivision. Individual building services will be provided from the new main.

Wastewater Systems

Similar to the water system, an 8-inch sewer main will be extended from an existing main in Clubhouse 
Circle, and will provide opportunity for individual sewer taps for each house.

Stormwater Systems

The original Drainage Mater Plan for Pine Canyon accounted for the development of Unit 5.  As part of the 
master plan, a detention basin is located in tract 6B of the development.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff believes that this plat meets the development standards required by the zoning code and by the 
engineering standards and, as such, recommends that the commission forward the preliminary plat to the city 
council with a recommendation for approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

Preliminary Plat Application
Location Map
DRB Comment of  June 28, 2013
Preliminary Plat



  14. C.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Brian Kulina, Planning Development Manager

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of a Preliminary Plat: for Miramonte Homes, Tract B of Presidio in the
Pines, a subdivision of 14 single-family, residential townhomes on approximately 1.65 acres located at
2700 S Presidio Drive South, within the Highway Commercial (HC) Zone.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends the City Council approve the Preliminary Plat
subject to the conditions listed in the attached Conditional Use Permit (PCUP13-0004).

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
The City Councill will find the Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation to approve the
proposed Preliminary Plat, which meets the requirements of the Zoning Code (City Code Title 10), the
Subdivision Code (City Code Title 11), and the Engineering Design Standards and Specifications for New
Infrastructure (City Code Title 13). 

Financial Impact:
No financial liabilities are anticipated by the approval of this Preliminary Plat. 

Connection to Council Goal:
Retain, expand, and diversify economic base

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
On May 18, 2004, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 2004-05 that rezoned approximately 91
acres of property from the Rural Residential (RR) Zone as follows: approximately 77 acres to the High
Density Residential (HR) Zone, approximately 1 acre to the Single-Family Residential (R1) Zone (formally
known as the Urban Residential (UR) Zone), and approximately 13 acres to the Highway Commercial
(HC) Zone (formally known as the Urban Commercial (UC) Zone).

On May 28, 2004, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2004-40 that entered the City into a
Development Agreement that included the Presidio in the Pines Development Master Plan.  A copy of the
recorded Development Agreement, with included Development Master Plan is on file and available for
inspection with the Community Development Department.  Subsequently, the Development Agreement
has been amended three times by the City Council.  The most recent amendment entitled the Third
Supplement to the Development Agreement is dated August 2, 2012.

The Final Plat of Presidio in the Pines, which included Tract B, was approved by the City Council and
was recorded on May 19, 2005.  Development was anticipated to include 470 residential units,



was recorded on May 19, 2005.  Development was anticipated to include 470 residential units,
construction of the entire on-site private and public roadway system, construction of the required
improvements to Woody Mountain Road, construction of the entire on-site public water and sewer
systems, construction of the required off-site public water and sewer improvements, and construction of
the entire stormwater detention system.

A Commercial Tentative Plat of Tract B was approved by the City Council on December 6, 2005. 
Development was anticipated to include 15 commercial condominiums totaling 16,111 square feet and
26 residential loft condominiums.  A final plat was never pursued, thus rendering the tentative plat
expired in accordance with Section 11-20.60.040 of the Subdivision Code.

Options and Alternatives:
1.  Approve the Preliminary Plat as recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission.
2.  Approve the Preliminary Plat subject to no conditions, additional conditions, or modified conditions.
3.  Deny approval of the Preliminary Plat based on non-compliance with the Zoning Code, the
Subdivision Code, and/or the Engineering Design Standards and Specifications for New Infrastructure. 

Background/History:
The Applicant, Mogollon Engineering and Surveying, Inc., is requesting Preliminary Plat approval to
permit 14 single-family residential townhome lots on 1.65 acres.  The site is located within the Presidio in
the Pines master planned development and is currently zoned Highway Commercial (HC) with a
Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan (RLUTP) designation of Mixed Use.

Presidio in the Pines was planned and developed using the Traditional Neighborhood District (TND)
standards found within the previous Land Development Code.  When the Zoning Code was adopted, the
TND standards were carried forward in the form of transect zones.  While townhomes are not specifically
permitted within the HC zone, they are permitted as part of a Planned Residential Development (PRD)
with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), which was approved by the Planning and Zoning
Commission on August 14, 2013 with a condition that the CUP not be executed until a Final Plat is
approved and recorded.  The Zoning Code established the PRD as a mechanism to allow the
development of specific transect zone building types (i.e., townhouse, duplex, courtyard apartments, etc.)
in non-transect zones.  These specific building types, however, are dependent on transect development
standards.  As such, this development proposes the use of the T4 Neighborhood 2 (T4N2) transect zone
development standards.

All other substantive issues relating to this item are included with the applicable report to the Planning
and Zoning Commission dated July 25, 2013 and attached.

Community Involvement:
The existing site zoning allows the proposed subdivision.  No public hearings are required as part of a
subdivision plat review.

During the public hearing for the accompanying Conditional Use Permit (PCUP2013-0004), Mr. Lyman
Grover, a resident of Kit Carson R.V. Park, expressed his concern about the severe flooding of the park
that he believes is a direct result of runoff from the Presidio in the Pines development.  Stormwater staff
made contact with Mr. Grover and staff provided assurance that all stormwater facilities at Presidio have
been constructed according to the approved plans and standards.



Attachments:  PZC Staff Report
PZC Staff Report Attachments
Conditional Use Permit (PCUP2013-0004)
Preliminary Plat



 

 

 

1 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 

PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 

 

PC PPPL 2013-0004 DATE: July 25, 2013 

 MEETING DATE: August 14, 2013 

 REPORT BY: Brian Kulina 

 

 

REQUEST: 

 

A Preliminary Plat request from Mogollon Engineering and Surveying, Inc., on behalf of Miramonte Homes, for a 

Preliminary Plat of Tract B of The Presidio in the Pines master planned development.  The Tract B Preliminary Plat 

consists of 14 single-family residential townhome lots on approximately 1.65 acres located at 2700 S Presidio Drive 

South, within the Highway Commercial (HC) Zone. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Staff recommends the Planning and Zoning Commission forward the Preliminary Plat to the City Council with a 

recommendation for approval. 

 

PRESENT LAND USE: 

 

Undeveloped. 

 

PROPOSED LAND USE: 

 

14 townhome lots. 

 

NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT: 

 

North: Undeveloped Single-Family Residential Townhomes; High Density Residential (HR) Zone 

East: Undeveloped Single-Family Residential Townhomes; High Density Residential (HR) Zone 

South: Undeveloped Single-Family Residential Townhomes; High Density Residential (HR) Zone 

West: Undeveloped Mixed-Use, Presidio Town Square; Highway Commercial (HC) Zone 

 

REQUIRED FINDINGS: 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall find that the proposed Preliminary Plat meets the requirement of the 

Zoning Code (City Code Title 10), the Subdivision Code (City Code Title 11), and the Engineering Design Standards 

and Specifications for New Infrastructure (City Code Title 13). 

 

STAFF REVIEW: 

 

Introduction and Discussion 

 

On May 18, 2004, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 2004-05 that rezoned approximately 91 acres of 



PPPL 2013-0004 

July 25, 2013 

 

 

 

 

 2 

property from the Rural Residential (RR) Zone as follows: approximately 77 acres to the High Density Residential 

(HR) Zone, approximately 1 acre to the Single-Family Residential (R1) Zone (formally known as the Urban 

Residential (UR) Zone), and approximately 13 acres to the Highway Commercial (HC) Zone (formally known as the 

Urban Commercial (UC) Zone).   

 

On May 28, 2004, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2004-40 that entered the City into a Development 

Agreement that included the Presidio in the Pines Development Master Plan.  A copy of the recorded Development 

Agreement, with included Development Master Plan is on file and available for inspection with the Community 

Development Department.  Subsequently, the Development Agreement has been amended three times by the City 

Council.  The most recent amendment entitled the Third Supplement to the Development Agreement is dated August 

2, 2012. 

 

The Final Plat of Presidio in the Pines, which included Tract B, was approved by the City Council and was recorded 

on May 19, 2005.  Development was anticipated to include 470 residential units, construction of the entire on-site 

private and public roadway system, construction of the required improvements to Woody Mountain Road, 

construction of the entire on-site public water and sewer systems, construction of the required off-site public water 

and sewer improvements, and construction of the entire stormwater detention system. 

 

A Commercial Tentative Plat of Tract B was approved by the City Council on December 6, 2005.  Development was 

anticipated to include 15 commercial condominiums totaling 16,111 square feet and 26 residential loft 

condominiums.  A final plat was never pursued, thus rendering the tentative plat expired in accordance with Section 

11-20.60.040 of the Subdivision Code. 

 

A Conditional Use Permit application to allow the establishment of a Planned Residential Development within the 

Highway Commercial (HC) zone was reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on August 14, 2013. 

 

Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan 

 

The Flagstaff Area Regional Land Use and Transportation Plan (RLUTP) designates the subject property as Mixed 

Use, which encourages densities of not less than seven (7) dwelling units per acre.  The primary objective of the 

Mixed Use land use designation is to provide a mix of housing types, shopping, and employment centers that 

invite walking to gathering places, services, and conveniences, and that are fully integrated into the larger 

community.  While the subject property is no longer proposed with a non-residential component, the Presidio in 

the Pines master planned development fulfills the intent of the Mixed Use designation by providing additional lots 

that are planned for non-residential development, a central town square gathering place, and an extensive system 

of pedestrian amenities that enhance connectivity. 

 

ZONING REQUIREMENT 

 

The subject property is currently zoned Highway Commercial (HC).  Presidio in the Pines was planned and 

developed using the Traditional Neighborhood District (TND) standards found within the previous Land 

Development Code.  When the Zoning Code was adopted, the TND standards were carried forward in the form of 

transect zones.  While townhomes are not specifically permitted within the HC zone, they are permitted as part of a 

Planned Residential Development (PRD) with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  The Zoning Code 

established the PRD as a mechanism to allow the development of specific transect zone building types (i.e. 



PPPL 2013-0004 

July 25, 2013 

 

 

 

 

 3 

townhouse, duplex, courtyard apartments, etc.) in non-transect zones.  These specific building types, however, are 

dependent on transect development standards.  As such, this development proposes the use of the T4 Neighborhood 2 

(T4N2) transect zone development standards. 

 

Density/Intensity/Development Standards 

 

The development has a proposed net density of 13.1 dwelling units per acre, which exceeds the minimum seven 

(7) dwelling units per acre established by the RLUTP and the minimum 13 dwelling units per acre established by 

the Zoning Code.  As previously mentioned, this development is proposed as using the T4N2 development 

standards.  Section 10-40.40.080.A of the Zoning Code (Page 40.40-31) indicates that the primary intent of the 

T4N2 zone is to create new walkable urban neighborhoods that are in character with established neighborhoods 

through the integration of small-footprint, medium-density building types that are likely smaller than those found 

in other zones. 

 

Section 10-50.110.120 of the Zoning Code (Page 50.110-20) establishes specific development standards for 

townhouse development within a transect zone.  These standards include setbacks that are reduced from traditional 

zoning districts, a minimum lot width of 18-feet, a minimum lot depth of 80-feet, individual entrances facing a 

street, porches, and rear loaded design.  This development proposal meets the criteria of the townhome standards 

except for minimum lot depth.  In order to meet the minimum density requirements and rear loaded design 

standard, a 22-foot wide private roadway is planned to connect Presidio Drive South and Mission Timber Circle 

bisecting the subject property.  All lots meet the minimum lot size requirements of 1,440 square feet.   

 

Reductions in development standards are supported by the Zoning Code when the lot is created by a recorded 

subdivision as a legal building site (Section 10-20.60.090, Page 20.60-6).  Staff feels that these reductions in the 

standards are mitigated by the site and development design, and the integration of the development into the 

Presidio in the Pines master planned development.  Further, Staff believes that this development is in conformance 

with the requirements of the Zoning Code. 

 

Natural Resources 

 

In accordance with Section 10-50.90.020.A of the Zoning Code (Page 50.90-2), the subject property is located within 

the established Resource Protection Overlay (RPO) Zone.  When Presidio in the Pines was initially entitled and 

platted, a Tree Resource Plan, a copy of which is attached to this report, was submitted to and approved by the City.  

That plan identified Tract B as having no preserved forest resources; however, the Applicant has agreed to preserve as 

many existing trees as possible during the development of the project.  No floodplain or slope resources are located 

on the subject property. 

 

Open Space 

 

The open space requirement for a townhome lot is 15% of the lot area.  The open space can be provided in several 

forms, including porches, balconies, open ground, or useable common area.  Open space for this development should 

range from 578 square feet for the smallest lot to 1,085 square feet for the largest lot.  On-lot open space is primarily 

provided by an approximately 445 square foot porch.  This leaves an open space deficiency ranging from 133 square 

feet for the smallest lot to 640 square feet for the largest lot.  This development is part of the larger Presidio in the 

Pines master planned development that provides for approximately 15.5 acres of open space spread throughout the 



PPPL 2013-0004 

July 25, 2013 

 

 

 

 

 4 

development, including the 1.24 acre Town Square immediately adjacent to Tract B.  When the off-site open space is 

combined with the provided on-site open space, staff believes that the intent of the T4N2 zone is being met resulting 

in a compact urban form that is in character with the surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Landscaping 

 

Table 10-50.60.050.A of the Zoning Code (Page 50.60-19) requires that street buffer and building foundation 

landscaping be provided at a plant rate of 1 tree per each 25 linear feet with 2 shrubs and 2 groundcover plants per 

tree.  As previously mentioned, the Applicant is working to preserve existing trees, which, in accordance with Section 

10-50.60.050.A.1.g of the Zoning Code (Page 50.60-18), can be used to offset some of the required landscaping.  A 

final landscape plan prepared in accordance with Section 10-50.60.030.C of the Zoning Code (Page 50.60-6) will be 

required as part of the public improvement plan submission. 

 

Lighting 

 

In accordance with Section 10-50.70.040.B of the Zoning Code (Page 50.70-4), this development is located within 

Lighting Zone 2.  In accordance with Table 10-50.70.050.A of the Zoning Code (Page 50.70-6), the maximum 

total lumens for a single-family residential development within Zone 2 is 10,000 lumens per lot, which includes a 

limit of 4,000 lumens per lot for partially shielded light fixtures.  Development includes 3 light fixtures per lot 

with a lumen output of approximately 1,500 lumens per fixtures for a total on-lot lumen count of 4,500 lumens per 

lot.  Final lighting compliance will be ensured during the building permit review process. 

 

Building Design 

 

The townhomes are two-stories tall with finish floor elevations (FFE) that vary from lot-to-lot, which help to 

distinguish between building modules.  The ground floor includes a 2-car garage, master bedroom and bath, living 

area, dining area, kitchen, laundry, and half-bath.  The second floor includes 2 bedrooms, a full bath, and a loft.  Four 

lots are proposed with an optional attached casita that includes separate external access, a bedroom, sitting area, and 

full bath.  These casitas do not meet the Accessory Dwelling Unit size or amenity requirements as prescribed by the 

Zoning Code and are therefore classified as a bedroom. 

 

Proposed elevations and floor plans are attached to this report for review.  The Developer has provided a design that 

includes multi-planed pitched roofs with building materials and window designs that are traditionally seen throughout 

Flagstaff.  Columns and a porch work to establish a pedestrian scale to the building and clearly define the main 

entrance of each dwelling unit.  In keeping with the Presidio new urbanism design principles, the front door of each 

unit is oriented to the street with rear vehicular access. 

 

Staff believes the proposed building design, material, and site work together to provide a development that integrates 

into the neighborhood and meets the design requirement of the Zoning Code.  Final design compliance will be 

ensured during the building permit review process. 

 

SYSTEMS ANALYSIS: 

 

Traffic/Access/Pedestrian/Bicycle 

 



PPPL 2013-0004 

July 25, 2013 

 

 

 

 

 5 

No traffic impact analysis was required for this development.  Bicycle and pedestrian access is available from this 

site via existing sidewalks and the new private roadway, which has a proposed cross-section in keeping with 

Presidio new urbanism design principles, provides vehicular access to the rear loaded garages, and will be 

maintained by the established Homeowners Association.  Section 11-20.120.010.A of the Subdivision Code 

requires that all lots created by the subdivision of land shall have their own frontage to a public or private street.  

Section 10-80.20.060 of the Zoning Code (Page 80.20-32) defines frontage as the areas between the façade and the 

vehicular lanes inclusive of its built and planted components.  Although the lots along the east and south edges of 

the subject property do not have a physical connection to the adjacent street, they do have frontage, as defined by 

the Zoning Code, along the street and they have legal access to either Presidio Drive or Mission Timber Circle via 

the new private roadway.  Staff believes that this meets the intent of the Subdivision Code by granting legal access 

to the individual lots that cannot be removed, denied, or modified without City Council action.  Further, Staff 

believes that this development is in conformance with the requirements of the Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, 

and the Engineering Design Standards 

 

Water System 

 

In accordance with the Engineering Design Standards, an 8-inch water main will be extended from an existing main 

located in Presidio Drive South and Mission Timber Circle through the private roadway.  Individual building services 

will be provided from this new main. 

 

Wastewater System 

 

In accordance with the Engineering Design Standards, 8-inch sewer main will be extended from an existing main 

located in Mission Timber Circle south through the private roadway.  The new main will terminate at the northwest 

side of the property.  Individual building services will be provided from this new main. 

 

Stormwater System 

 

The original Drainage Master Plan for Presidio in the Pines accounted for the development of Tract B.  No new Low 

Impact Development (LID) or detention features are required on-site.  The Developer has noted that native, drought 

tolerant plantings and passive rainwater harvesting will be used across this development. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

 

Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Commission forward the Preliminary Plat to the City Council with a 

recommendation for approval. 

 

Attachments: 

 

• Preliminary Plat Application 

• Vicinity Map 

• Aerial Image 

• Elevations and Floor Plans (Included in PC CUP 2013-0004 Packet) 

• Tree Protection Plan (Included in PC CUP 2013-0004 Packet) 



PPPL 2013-0004 

July 25, 2013 

 

 

 

 

 6 

• Preliminary Plat (Included in PC CUP 2013-0004 Packet) 



















 
 

COCONINO COUNTY, ARIZONA RECORDER 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

FROM GRANTOR: CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 

COCONINO COUNTY, ARIZONA 

OFFICE OF PLANNING AND ZONING 

TO GRANTEE:  MIRAMONTE HOMES 
 
 
Permit No. PCUP 2013-0004  
August 14, 2013 
CUP Fee Paid $799.00 
 
Permission is hereby granted to Miramonte Homes to allow the establishment of a 
Planned Residential Development, and associated site work, pursuant to Section 10-
40.30.040.B. of the Flagstaff Zoning Code at a site located at 2700 S Presidio Drive 
South in the Highway Commercial (HC) Zone, and legally described as Coconino County 
Assessor parcel number 112-62-472 in the City of Flagstaff, Arizona. 
 
After a public hearing held on August 14, 2013, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
voted to grant this Conditional Use Permit subject to the following conditions. 
 
1. Unless modified to comply with these conditions, the development of the site shall 

substantially conform to the plans as presented with the Conditional Use Permit 
application. 

2. Prior to the execution of this Conditional Use Permit, a Final Plat for the development 
of the subject property shall be successfully reviewed and approved by the City 
Council and recorded with the Coconino County Recorder. 

3. One additional parking space, up to a maximum of three spaces, shall be provided on-
site for each casita that is constructed. 

 
Furthermore, this permit is issued on the express condition that the use herein permitted 
shall conform in all relevant respects to the ordinances of the City of Flagstaff and the 
laws of the State of Arizona. 
 
Any and all conditions endorsed on this permit are subject to periodic review by the City 
of Flagstaff’s Planning Director.  Following review, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission shall be notified when the conditions of operation imposed in the approval 
and issuance of this permit have not been, or are not being complied with. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission shall consider the matter of revocation and set the 
permit for public hearing.  If the Planning and Zoning Commission finds, following the 
public hearing, that the conditions imposed in the issuance of this permit are not being 
complied with, this permit may be revoked and further operation of the use for which this 
permit was approved shall constitute a violation of the Zoning Code. 



Permit No. PCUP 2013-001 
August 14, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
This Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void one (1) year from the effective 
date of August 14, 2013 unless the following shall have occurred: 
 
1. A building permit has been issued and construction begun and diligently pursued; or 
2. The approved use has been established; or 
3. An extension has been granted by the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Such 

extension shall be for a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) days and no extension 
may be granted which would extend the validity of the permit more than eighteen 
(18) months beyond the date of approval of the permit. 

4. Property Owner shall sign Consent to Conditions/Waiver for Diminution of Value 
form as a condition of issuance of the Conditional Use Permit by the City. 

5. Development of the use shall not be carried out until the applicant has secured all 
other permits and approvals required by the Zoning Code, the City, or applicable 
regional, State and federal agencies. 
 

This document       does modify, or   X   does not modify the provisions of a previous 
Conditional Use Permit recorded in docket ___________, Office of the Coconino 
County, Arizona, Recorder. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Planning Director, City of Flagstaff 

 
 
By:    
 Applicant (if other than the property owner) 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
 )  ss 
County of Coconino ) 
 
Before me, the undersigned Notary Public personally appeared ____________________ 
who executed the foregoing document for the purposes contained therein. 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this _____ day of _______________, 2013 
 
 
  
Notary Public 
 
My Commission expires:   
 
 



Permit No. PCUP 2013-001 
August 14, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
By:    
 Property Owner 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
 )  ss 
County of Coconino ) 
 
Before me, the undersigned Notary Public personally appeared ____________________ 
who executed the foregoing document for the purposes contained therein.. 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this _____ day of _______________, 2013 
 
 
  
Notary Public 
 
My Commission expires:   
 









  14. D.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Elizabeth A. Burke, City Clerk

Co-Submitter: Michelle D'Andrea, City Attorney

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE: 
Consideration and Possible Adoption of Resolution No. 2013-23: A resolution of the City Council of
the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, ordering and calling the 2014 Primary/General Elections; and providing for
and giving notice of said election(s). 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Should the City Council wish to move forward with calling the 2014 Spring Elections:
1) Read Resolution No. 2013-23 by title only
2) City Clerk reads Resolution No. 2013-23 (if approved above)
3) Adopt Resolution No. 2013-23

Policy Decision or Reason for Action:
This resolution will call the Primary/General Elections for 2014 for March and May, respectively, should
the Council choose to move in that direction.

Financial Impact:
A May 2014 mail-ballot Special Election has been budgeted in the FY2014 budget in the amount of
$125,000 for the Regional Plan. Determination has not yet been made as to whether the 2014 election(s)
would be a mail-ballot election or a polling place election in conjunction with other jurisdictions, either of
which would run around $2.50/registered voter if held in the Spring. A Primary election, if required, would
run around $2.50/registered voter, or approximately $80,000. This amount has not been budgeted
because at the time of the budget preparation we were anticipating Fall elections for candidates, which
would be budgeted in next year's budget. Should a Primary be required, these funds would come from
General Fund Contingency.

Connection to Council Goal:
11. Effective governance

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
The City Council has discussed this issue on Jun 11, 2013, and September 3, 2013.



Options and Alternatives:
1) Adopt the resolution as written
2) Amend the resolution and adopt as amended
3) Not adopt the resolution, thereby not calling a 2014 Election at this time

Background/History:
The Arizona State Legislature made changes to the Arizona Revised Statutes that require all cities and
towns, beginning in 2014, to hold their primary/general elections in August and November of
even-numbered years. This legislation was challenged by the cities of Tucson and Phoenix and on
August 12, 2013, the Pima County Superior Court ruled in favor of the City of Tucson and the City of
Phoenix, granting them a permanent injunction enjoining the State of Arizona from requiring them to
comply with the candidate election scheduling requirements of ARS 16-204. With this ruling being in
Superior Court, it did not create precedent for the remaining charter cities/towns in the State.

The State of Arizona has until September 13, 2013, to file an appeal to this decision. If the State files an
appeal and the Court of Appeals rules in favor of charter cities, a Spring election would be possible. If the
Court of Appeals ruled in favor of the State of Arizona, a Fall election would be required.

Key Considerations:
Calling the election now allows the City to proceed in a manner consistent with the Charter and with past
practice. Individual candidates may decide when to begin circulating petitions once the packets are
available September 30.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The benefit to the community by holding a Spring Election is that it is what they are familiar with as it is
consistent with the City Charter which requires Spring elections. Additionally, it allows the City's
candidates and issues to be on a ballot separate from a statewide ballot wherein the City's candidates
and elections would be at the end of the ballot thereby allowing for items to be overlooked due to voter
fatigue. A November election would also create additional problems that are associated with having the
nonpartisan candidates/issues of the City being part of a partisan ballot in the Primary Election, which is
likely to decrease primary turn out for independent voters.

Community Involvement:
Inform - Adoption of the this resolution would inform the public of the upcoming election date(s) and
provide specific information on when candidate packets would be available.

Attachments:  Res. 2013-23



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-23 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, 
ARIZONA, ORDERING AND CALLING THE 2014 PRIMARY/GENERAL 
ELECTIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AND GIVING NOTICE OF SAID 
ELECTION(S) 
 

 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 1951, in compliance with A.R.S. §16-204, establishes, in even-
numbered years, the second Tuesday in March as the Primary Election date, and the third 
Tuesday in May as the General Election date; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Flagstaff City Charter, Article IX, Section 1(c) states that general elections shall 
be held for the purpose of electing a Mayor and Council and such other purposes as the Council 
may prescribe; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Flagstaff City Charter, Article IX, Section 5(b) states that in the event that no 
more than two candidates file nominating petitions for each vacancy in office, the Primary 
Election may be dispensed with as to that office. 
 
WHEREAS, A.R.S. §16-409 provides for mail ballot elections for Arizona jurisdictions, and the 
Flagstaff City Council has determined that calling mail ballot elections has practical benefits for 
the citizens of Flagstaff unless the election will be held in conjunction with another jurisdiction 
unable to hold a mail ballot election, in which case the City will participate with the polling place 
election for ease of the voters. 
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  There is hereby called a March 11, 2014, Mail Ballot Primary Election for the City 
of Flagstaff for the purpose of nominating candidates to fill the office of Mayor and three (3) 
Councilmembers at the May 20, 2014, General Election, unless the election will be held in 
conjunction with another jurisdiction that is unable to hold a mail ballot election, in which case 
the City will participate with the polling place election. 
 
SECTION 2. Pursuant to Art. IX, Sec. 5(b) of the Flagstaff City Charter, in the event that no 
more than two candidates file nominating petitions for each vacancy in office, the Primary 
Election may be dispensed with as to that office. 
 
SECTION 3. Candidate packets for the 2014 elections will be available at the City Clerk’s 
Office, 211 West Aspen, Flagstaff, AZ, beginning September 30, 2013, and must be filed with 
the City Clerk’s Office between December 11, 2013, and January 10, 2014. 
 
SECTION 4. The City of Flagstaff, through adoption of this resolution, agrees to pay the return 
postage for voted ballots, should a mail ballot election be held. 
  



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2013-23   PAGE 2 
 
 
SECTION 5. The last date to register to vote is as follows: 
 
   ELECTION DATE       DEADLINE 
 
        03/11/2014        02/10/2014 
        05/20/2014        04/21/2014 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council and approved by the Mayor of the City of Flagstaff, this 
  day of      , 2013. 
 
 
 
 
    ________     
 MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       
CITY ATTORNEY 



  15. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Kimberly Sharp, AICP, Comprehensive Planning
Manager

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting
Date:

09/17/2013

TITLE
Regional Plan Discussion #3 – Ch. VII. Energy

THIS ITEM WILL NOT BE DISCUSSED PRIOR TO 7:00 P.M.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff will present a brief background of data, public comment input, and policies for Chapter VII.
Energy of the Flagstaff Regional Plan.  Council may wish to open the discussion for public
comment at this time, followed by discussion on any concerns regarding this chapter or policies to
put on the 'Policy Parking Lot' list for further Council discussion, debate and decision in November
and December.

INFORMATION
As a required element within the plan, State Statute clearly articulates that this chapter or element is a
community’s opportunity to address ‘Energy Efficiency’ and ‘Renewable Energy’.  This was the first
chapter completed by the Citizen Advisory Committee, and publicly solicited comments, internal staff and
external stakeholders as well as APS we consulted with to develop the policies found in this chapter. 

In addition to the hard copy of the Plan you each have been given, the chapter may be reviewed on-line
at:
http://www.flagstaffmatters.com/_pdfs/chapters/FRP-VII-Energy.pdf

Attachments:  Regional Plan Memo
Regional Plan Presentation

http://www.flagstaffmatters.com/_pdfs/chapters/FRP-VII-Energy.pdf


CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF MEMORANDUM

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Kimberly Sharp, AICP Comprehensive Planning Mgr

Date: September 11, 2013

Meeting Date: September 17, 2013

TITLE: Flagstaff Regional Plan – Elements 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discussion

ACTION SUMMARY:
At the September 10, 2013 City Council Work session, the Council requested time to 
discuss State Statute Requirements for elements vs. optional elements.

Which Regional Plan elements are required by state law and which ones are 
optional?
Arizona State Statue 9-461 outlines the required elements and the components of those elements in municipalities 
General Plan (language below directly from and in the order of the State Statute): 

o Land Use – proposed general distribution and location of land uses, statement of standards of population 
densities, identify programs and policies a municipality may consider to encourage redevelopment and infill, 
considers air quality and access to solar 

o Circulation - general location and extent of existing and proposed roadways, bicycle routes and any other 
modes of transportation as may be appropriate, all correlated with the land use element. 

o Open Space – comprehensive inventory of open space areas, recreational resources, access points, an
analysis of forecasted needs, policies for managing and protecting open space areas and to promote a 
regional system of integrated open spaces and recreations resources. 

o Growth Areas – specifically identify areas that are suitable for planned multimodal transportation and 
infrastructure expansion/improvements designed to support a planned concentration of a variety of uses. 

o Environmental Planning – contains analysis, policies and strategies to address anticipated effects of plan 
elements on air quality, water quality and natural resources.  The policies and strategies to be developed to 
have community-wide applicability and shall not require the production of an additional environmental 
impact statement beyond state and federal requirements. 

o Cost of Development – policies and strategies that the municipality will use to require development to pay 
its fair share toward the cost of additional public service needs generated by new development, with 
appropriate exceptions when the in the public interest. 

Item No.



o Water Resources – address the known legally and physically available surface water, ground water and 
effluent supplies; projected demand based upon land use and growth; analysis of how demand will be met. 

o (Environmental) Conservation – for the conservation, development and utilization of natural resources, 
including forests, soils, rivers, wildlife, minerals and other natural resources; flood control, prevention and 
control of pollution in streams, regulation of land use in stream channels, erosion and protection of 
watersheds.  Italics staff, as many confuse urban conservation from environmental conservation.

o Recreation – comprehensive system of areas and public sites for recreation, including proposed 
development of future recreational needs. 

o Public services and facilities – general plans for police, fire, emergency services, sewage, refuse 
disposal, drainage, utilities, right-of-way easements and facilities. 

o Public Buildings – location of civic and community centers, public schools, libraries, police and fire stations 
and other public buildings. 

o Housing – standards and programs for the elimination of substandard dwelling conditions, for the 
improvement of housing quality, variety and affordability; identify existing and forecasted housing needs of 
all segments of the community regardless of race, color, creed or economic level. 

o (Urban) Conservation, rehabilitation and redevelopment – plans and programs for the elimination of 
slums and blighted areas and community redevelopment.  Italics staff, as many confuse urban conservation 
from environmental conservation.

o Safety – for the protection of the community from natural and artificial hazards, evacuation routes, peak 
load water supply, minimum road widths, geological hazard mapping. 

o Bicycle – proposed bicycle facilities 

o Energy – policies that encourage and provide incentives for the efficient use of energy; provide for greater 
uses of renewable energy sources. 

o Neighborhood preservation and revitalization – identify city programs that promote home ownership, 
provide for the assistance for the improving the maintenance and appearance of neighborhoods. 

By City Council and County Board of Supervisors direction and Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) decision, the 
following optional four out of five elements, as outlined in the Arizona Growing Smarter legislation were included and 
incorporated into the document: 

• Community Character and Design 
• Natural/Cultural Resources Planning 
• Economic Development 
• Historic Preservation 

The one following optional element was not included in the plan: 

• Social 

End of MEMO



1 

Flagstaff City Council 
September 17, 2013 



• Which Regional Plan elements are 
required by state law and which ones 
are optional? 

2 

Regional Plan Elements  



Regional Plan Elements 
 

17 required elements: 
• Land Use  
• Circulation  
• Open Space  
• Growth Areas  
• Environmental Planning 
• Cost of Development  
• Water Resources  
• Recreation 
• Safety 
• Public Facilities and Services  
• *Energy 
• * Conservation 
• *Public Buildings 
• *Housing  
• *Bicycle 
• *Urban Conservation, Rehabilitation and Redevelopment 
• *Neighborhood Preservation and Revitalization 
 
* new items as added by ARS 

5 optional elements: 
 

• Community Character and Design  
• Natural/Cultural Resources Planning 
• Economic Development 
• *Historic Preservation 
• *Social 
 

 

Regional Plan Elements  



4 

Chapter VII. Energy 



The Regional Plan Vision 
 

5 

The greater Flagstaff community embraces the 
region’s extraordinary cultural and ecological setting 
in the Colorado Plateau through active stewardship of 
the natural and built environments. Residents and 
visitors encourage and advance intellectual, 
environmental, social, and economic vitality for 
today’s citizens and future generations.  



Guiding Principles 

• Environment 
• Prosperity 
• Sustainability 
• People 
• A smart & connected community 
• Place 
• Trust & Transparency 
• Cooperation 

6 

Chapter VII. Energy 



1. REGIONAL PLAN OPEN HOUSES - Public Comments 
March 11 (St. Pius Church), 12 (City Hall) and 13 (Pulliam Airport), 2009: 
 
2. Regional Plan Focus Group  
Energy, Environment, & Water 
September 24, 2009 - 4-7:30 p.m. 
Coconino Community College Lone Tree Campus  
2800 S. Lone Tree Rd. 
SWOT Analysis Results 
 

3. Review of 2001 policies 
– Open Space Commission 
– Parks and Rec Commission 
– Sustainability Cabinet 
– Tourism Commission 
– Water Commission 
– Neighborhood Groups 
– Chamber / NABA / Realtors 

 
7 

ENERGY 
Strengths Weaknesses 
City & County environmental services department 
– education / incentives. 

City/County programs are residential based-need 
commercial opportunities 

Solar Resource-capturing this – what is the 
potential capture and feasibility?  

Solar Incentives? Policy for use? 

APS is forward thinking-good partner; ACC is 
pushing in the right direction 

Tax incentives- exist but could be improved 

Expertise & infrastructure (capability) here 
For solar & wind efficiency  

Political leadership- advocating energy efficiency & 
remodels 

Favorable community culture & community 
leaders 

Low capital funding available  

Educational expertise- CCC & NAU Rental properties are NOT interested in energy 
efficiency  

Solar & Wind capabilities FUSD Education (K-12) 
Public Transit w/ alternative fuels Biomass, Bio Gas & Geo-thermal - potential 
Community Partnerships –SEDI/CITY/COUNTY/FS Public transit can increase service 
Opportunities Threats 
Solar Resource Political inconsistency 
FUSD educational resources K-12 Tax structure 
Learning from global best practices State laws that prevent municipalities from 

adopting 
SWEEP- SW Energy Efficiency Program-Jeff Slagal Inertia & political opposition at state & local level 

Focus econ. Development on “green” businesses –
harvesting energy from renewable 

Special interest groups (AZ Builders) knock down 
legislation- political opposition – how to build 
bridges and buy-in? 

National Energy producers are interested in AZ 
solar 

Environmental conservation – wildlife & view 
sheds 

Tribes & tribal land are interested & developing 
economic opportunity-have land; Include energy 
conservation  design in site plans 

Need strong renewable transmission capabilities 
(infrastructure) 
 

Chapter VII. Energy – Public Process 



4. Multiple energy provider discussions: 
– APS 
– Unisource 
– Solar 
– Wind power 
 

5. Comparison to other energy sections 
– Coconino County Comprehensive Plan 

 

 

8 

Chapter VII. Energy – Public Process 



ARS  
•Energy Efficiency 
•  Renewable Energy 

9 

Chapter VII. Energy 



10 

Chapter VII. Energy 



11 

Chapter VII. Energy 



12 

Chapter VII. Energy 



13 

Chapter VII. Energy 



14 

Chapter VII. Energy 



15 

Schedule Forward 

September 10   Ch. IV – Environment Planning and Conservation and Ch. V - Open Space 

September 17 Ch. VII. - Energy 

September 24 Ch. VI. – Water Resources 

October 1 Ch. VIII.  - Community Character 

October 8 Ch. IX. - Land Use 

October 15 Ch. X – Transportation and Ch. XI - Cost of Development 

October 22 Ch. XII - Public Buildings, Services, Facilities & Safety and Ch. XV  - Recreation 

October 29 Ch. XIII. - Neighborhood, Housing, and Urban Conservation 

November 5 Ch. XIV. - Economic Development 

November 12 Ch. III – Implementation and Appendix D – Annual Report Template 

November 18 Public Hearing #1 – Joint City/County meeting 

December 3 Public Hearing #2  - City Council  [6:00 p.m. 211 West Aspen Avenue]  

December 3 Public Hearing #2 – County [3:00 p.m. in 219 E. Cherry]; 

December 17 Adoption & call for election 

May 20, 2014 General Election – mail-in ballot for General Plan 



 
www.flagstaffmatters.com 

 
 



  15. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Rick Barrett, City Engineer

Date: 09/11/2013

Meeting Date: 09/17/2013

TITLE
Discussion of the City's Materials Testing Program.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Consider information received from private sector service providers and provide direction to staff
regarding the Materials Testing Program.

INFORMATION

COUNCIL GOAL/PRIORITY: Repair, Replace and Maintain Infrastructure.  Also, Council Guiding
Principle (things to consider when making a decision): Should the City be providing this service? Can
someone else do it?  We have been asked, as a FY15 initiative, to consider whether materials testing
services could be competitively provided by private sector. However, we have accelerated this initiative
due to current vacancies in the City's Materials Testing Program.

BACKGROUND & HISTORY: City of Flagstaff has operated the Materials Testing Program (MTP) since
the mid ‘70s when the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers funded approximately $100,000 to establish a
quality assurance program for construction of the Wildcat Wastewater Treatment Plant. At that time the
lab was located in the Anderson Building on Phoenix Avenue. About four years later the lab was
relocated to Utilities Division’s East Flagstaff Facility on Commerce Avenue and is still located there
today. Over the years, the MTP had as many as 3½ staff (2008) and is currently staffed with two
Materials Technicians. With a current increase in work load, the 2 FTE work group is not able to conduct
the same level of field sampling and laboratory testing that had been performed in the past, resulting in a
new business model where we are managing the permitted work based on staffing capacity and not
conducting every test that might otherwise be required. Contractor education and an excelling Inspection
& Testing team have allowed us to be successful with this business model without an increase in
warranty issues or a decrease in long lasting infrastructure. As more projects are permitted (volume
increase), we will continue to spend less time on each project, if staffing levels remain constant.

MTP staff ensures that permitted projects are constructed with quality, reliable infrastructure built with
materials that are compliant with the Engineering Standards and they function as an integral part of the
City Inspection team. Materials tested are soils, concrete and asphalt. Samples are taken in the field and
then laboratory tests are performed in accordance with nationally recognized industry standards. Results
are reported back to Inspectors, who in turn work with Contractors in order to pro-actively monitor quality
of the work as its being performed. Materials Technicians often times work directly with Contractors, on
behalf of the Inspectors, if Inspectors are busy on other job sites.  This allows us to help Contractors
efficiently obtain approval to proceed with their work. Our primary customers are Contractors who have
been hired by either public (capital improvements) or private sector companies and include Franchise
Utility companies. Outcome of this work is long- lasting, high performing infrastructure for Public Works



Utility companies. Outcome of this work is long- lasting, high performing infrastructure for Public Works
and Utilities staff to operate and maintain as well as to provide safe and functioning water, sewer,
drainage and transportation systems for use by our current and future residents.

Within the MTP work group of 2 FTEs, we have experienced a resignation and a retirement, although the
retirement has been postponed. Combined with the City Manager's direction for the MTP to compete with
the private sector in FY15, we were faced with the dilemma of hiring staff only to possibly let them go
depending on the outcome of private sector competition.  So, we chose to initiate the Request for
Information (RFI) from the private sector immediately and temporarily hire staff through the City's On-Call
contract (Speedie and Associates) who works in conjunction with the staff member who has postponed
retirement.

Working with Purchasing, we were advised it was not possible to seek bids or proposals from
professional service providers as materials testing services are considered professional services and fall
under the purview of a professional engineer. Therefore, we decided to use the RFI process to obtain
pricing information from private sector service providers based on the annual volume of tests conducted
(CY12) and to anticipate the potential of a three-year contract term. The results of the RFI are as follows
(RFI as advertised and a detailed Information Tabulation are attached for reference):

Service Provider Annual cost
Ninyo & Moore $80,501.52
ATL, Inc. $145,822.00
City Materials Testing Program $153,285.00
Speedie & Associates $157,400.00
Western Technologies, Inc. $160,421.00
Speedie & Associates (alternate) $225,274.00

FINANCIAL: The FY14 Budget for the Materials Testing Program is $153,774 which covers the cost of 2
FTEs, overtime allotment ($3,000), vehicles & gas, cell phones, rent at East Flagstaff Facility, lab
equipment calibration/maintenance/repair, supplies and facility/vehicle maintenance.

In order to achieve 100% cost recovery for the Materials Testing Program, City Council recently
established a materials testing permit fee of 2.15% of engineer's estimated construction subtotal that is
expected to generate approximately $215,000 annually.

OPTIONS:
1) Maintain City Materials Testing Program. If Council elects this option staff will commence recruitment
for the two vacant positions, continuing the hybrid staff/on-call work group until new employees begin
employment.

2) Eliminate City Materials Testing Program and hire a private sector service provider. If Council elects
this option, staff will commence a qualifications-based selection process, continuing the hybrid
staff/on-call work group until Council awards a professional services contract. Under this option we would
recommend eliminating the laboratory for good as we do not believe it is in the City’s best interest to
maintain the lab until the three-year services contract expires in order to compete against private sector
again. Therefore, we would propose sending all equipment to surplus auction and return nuclear
densometers to the manufacturer. This would allow Utilities to expand their operations at the East
Flagstaff Facility after the lab tenant improvements are removed.

3) Continue hybrid staff/on-call work group. This option would result in redundant lab costs (City &
private sector), but, would allow for continued discussion.



4) Eliminate City Materials Testing Program and transfer the materials testing responsibility to the
permitted Contractor. If Council elects this option, staff will commence work on new Engineering
Standards that would establish performance criteria for Contractors/Developers to self-perform materials
testing (requiring Council approval by Ordinance). Unlike options listed above, this model will likely result
in construction-related delays and increased accountability for Contractors to schedule activities.   This
would also potentially create a situation that reduces construction quality and corresponding life of
infrastructure. 

CONCLUSION:  Based on the competitive information received, staff recommends that we commence a
qualifications based selection process and negotiate scope/fee with the top ranked firm to establish
an annual contract amount for a 3 year period.  We will then come back to Council for award of a services
contract if the negotiated annual amount is within 20% (approximate increase of $30,000) of the
Materials Testing Program's annual budget allotment.

Attachments:  Request for Information and Addenda
Information Tabulation
Presentation Slides
































	Agenda
	Item04_A  Minutes
	ATT.CCRM09032013.Minutes
	MINUTES
	REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

	ATT.CCJWS09092013.Minutes
	ATT.CCSM09102013.Minutes
	Item09_A  Purchase 700 HP Motor Control for Shop Well
	ATT.Shop Well VFD Replacement
	ATT.Emergency Purchase
	COF – PROCUREMENT CODE MANUAL:    ARTICLE 19         EMERGENCY PURCHASE

	Item10_A  Consideration of Amendment Two to the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)_Joint Project Agreement (JPA) 11-096-I between the City of Flagstaff (City) 
	ATT.IGA Amended
	Item10_B  Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2013-06, A Resolution of the City of Flagstaff Amending Flagstaff City Code Title 2, Boards and Commission
	ATT.Ord. 2013-06
	Item10_C  MR Write-Offs
	Item10_D  Transaction Privilege (Sales) Tax Write-Offs
	Item10_E  Utility Write-Offs
	Item10_F  INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH NACOG FOR HEAD START 
	ATT.IGA
	Item10_G  City Manager Excellence Awards
	Item14_A  Consideration of Ordinance adopting the prohibition of feeding wildlife 
	ATT.Wildlife Feeding Ord.
	ATT.Ord. 2013-20
	ATT.PowerPoint Presentation
	Item14_B  Preliminary Plat for The Estates at Pine Canyon, Unit 5
	ATT.P-Plat, Unit 5 at PC
	ATT.PandZ Report
	Item14_C  Preliminary Plat for Presidio in the Pines Tract B
	ATT.PZC Staff Report
	ATT.PZC Staff Report Attachments
	ATT.Conditional Use Permit (PCUP2013-0004)
	ATT.Preliminary Plat
	Item14_D  2014 Elections_ Resolution Calling Spring Elections
	ATT.Res. 2013-23
	Item15_A_aitem_845
	ATT.Regional Plan Memo
	ATT.Regional Plan Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Guiding Principles
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16

	Item15_B  Discussion of Flagstaff's Materials Testing Program
	ATT.Request for Information and Addenda
	ATT.Information Tabulation
	ATT.Presentation Slides

